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On behalf of the board of directors, | am pleased to present the annual
results of Daohe Global Group Limited (the “Company’, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “Daohe Global’) for the year ended 31
December 2022.

In the first half of 2022, the Group’s trading and supply chain
management services business was satisfactory, benefiting from the
early confirmation of orders from customers who were optimistic
about the business prospects in the previous year. Since then, however,
the global economy was dragged down by a number of factors in
general, including the Russia-Ukraine war, high inflation, soaring energy
prices and worldwide monetary tightening policies. Global trade was
bombarded by withering consumption in major economies such as
USA, China and the European Union. In facing the recession concerns
over the global economy and contracting consumer sentiment, it took
time for retail customers to assimilate inventory accumulated in the first
half year, and resulted in significant reduction in new orders, thus the
impact on the Group’s business was gradually emerging and becoming
significant in the second half of 2022. Overall, the performance of the
Group’s trading and supply chain management services still attained its
growth during the year, with a slight increase in total shipment value.

For the operation of online social platforms business, the Group’s
operation of online social platforms was significantly affected by the
escalating COVID-19 pandemic (the “pandemic”) in the PRC in the
first half year, which led to lockdown measures in many provinces
in the face of acute epidemic situation, shops closed, restriction of
live streaming activities, and the difficulty of offline logistics such as
the delivery of games and toys products. Moreover, in view of the
unfavorable economic environment, consumer sentiments were
affected, with consumption desire for online games and pop toys
products further dragged down. During the year under review,
some online social media platforms tightened their regulations, and
affected the Group’s ability to attract new game users. Also, the pop
toys products faced new compliance guidelines from the regulators
in Shanghai, which had exerted further pressure on our business.
Combining the aforesaid reasons and augmented by continuous fierce
market competition, the performance of the Group'’s online social
platforms business suffered a setback during the year.
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Looking ahead, the management expects that 2023 will be a
challenging year for the Group’s trading and supply chain management
services business, especially in the first half year when uncertainty of
global economic outlook will affect consumer sentiment, plus the fact
that most customers’ inventories are still at a high level, in which they
will adopt a more prudent wait-and-see approach when placing orders,
and hence, the Group expects the order demand in the first half year
will remain sluggish. Meanwhile, strong US dollars drives currencies
to depreciate for Asian countries and European and US customers
will demand price cuts, putting pressure on the Group’s operations.
The overall situation is expected to remain unchanged in the first half
of 2023. However, trade volumes are expected to pick up gradually
in the second half of 2023 as global economy gradually recovers and
orders will resume after global inventory is assimilated. The Group will
continue to work closely with its customers and supply chain partners
to provide comprehensive value-added services that meet customer
demands.

As for the online social platform business, the number of new users
and sales of in-game currency are expected to pick up following the
relaxation of anti-pandemic measures in the PRC at the end of 2022
as well as the introduction of clear policy guidelines from the central
government to boost local consumption. The Group will continue to
focus on increasing the number of users to drive revenue growth by
improving and expanding sales and distribution channels, introducing
new and flexible features, and conducting system upgrades to
enhance game quality and user experience through collaboration with
other online platforms. At the same time, the Group will also continue
to actively develop more innovative products to stimulate sales and
consolidate the Group's competitiveness and market position.

The Directors will maintain a prudent approach, closely monitor
macroeconomic developments, continue to strengthen close
cooperation with customers, supply chain partners and other online
platforms, adjust business strategies accordingly in a timely manner,
and control costs stringently to ensure maintaining a sound financial
position and attaining sustainable growth in the long run.

Finally, I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the Board of Directors, the management team and staffs
for their unremitting team spirit despite the continuous impact of
the pandemic and the economic environment, and to thank our
customers, business partners and shareholders for their continuous
trust and support.

Zhou Xijian
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s revenue fell by approximately 17.2% to approximately
US$51.9 million from approximately US$62.6 million last year.

In respect of the trading and supply chain management services
business, it has a good start in 2022 with increase in orders placed in
late 2021 and early 2022 under the growing economy. Despite the
demand was slowed down in the second half amid high inflation,
aggressive tightening of monetary policies, and uncertainties from the
Russia-Ukraine war, the shipment volume for the full year still recorded
a slight growth of 3.8% year-on-year. Regardless of growth in business,
the revenue of the Group's trading and supply chain management
services business declined by approximately 9.8% to approximately
US$26.7 million from last year's approximately US$29.6 million due to
the change in sales mix with a reduced volume of sales of merchandise.

As for online social platforms business, its overall revenue slipped
by approximately 23.8% to approximately US$25.1 million from
approximately US$33.0 million last year as impacted by the lingering

pandemic prevailing in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

Gross profit decreased by approximately 18.2% to approximately
USS$17.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2022 from
approximately US$20.9 million for last year. The drop was mainly
attributable to the decline in overall revenue and the narrowed gross
margin of online social platforms business.

Other income for the year amounted to approximately US$1.4
million (2021
attributable to the reversal of provisions and the subsidy income from
the PRC and Hong Kong Governments.

- approximately US$0.8 million). The increase was mainly

Operating expenses for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted
to approximately US$17.0 million, representing a drop of approximately
3.0% from last year's approximately US$17.5 million. The savings in
operating expenses was mainly from reduced personnel costs and
marketing expenses as business activities decreased.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised non-
cash impairment loss on property, plant and equipment, and right-of-
use assets totalling approximately US$0.5 million for the online social
platforms segment in view of the loss incurred by the segment and the
path to recovery being uncertain.

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately US$1.0
million, significantly lower than the approximately US$4.1 million for
2021, with the online social platforms segment recording loss in 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

SEGMENTAL ANALYSIS DEDWN
Operating Segmentation KeEDHE

The Group's business comprises two operating segments, namely: () AEBRNEFSBEMELE S D) E S Rt
trading and supply chain management services; and (ii) operation of ~ JEEE R R : M ()& 2P LEHETFE -
online social platforms.

)

Trading and supply chain management services () BZRMEEEEERE
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the shipment value BHE-E-_—_F+-_A=+—HILFE &
of trading and supply chain management services grew by SREEEEERENTESBERETY
approximately 3.8% to approximately US$162.8 million from 156,900,000 2 7T & fiN 7 3.8% £ %7 162,800,000
approximately US$156.9 million the previous year. ETT e
Geographical Analysis Ho i3k 5 4
I Y
Shipment value
HEEHE
2022 2021
=== T —F
US$' million USS$ million
E:-E BEET

North America Jb=M 1157
Europe B 273
Others HAb 139
-I:a:l 156.9
Shipments to North America rose by approximately 4.4% to AL B 18 238 hN4Y 4.4% Z= 49 120,800,000
approximately US$120.8 million. North America remained the EToEMDRAEENZATS 14
largest market of the Group, accounting for approximately 74.29% KREBMNEBEEREN42%( - —F 1 4
of the Group’s total shipment value (2021: approximately 73.7%). 73.7%) °
Shipments to Europe climbed by approximately 11.7% to EBUMNE B 2 B 749 11.7% = 49 30,500,000
approximately US$30.5 million due to the rise in orders from a EIT DHER—RZEBEP 2FTEEM - B
customer in France. Europe accounted for approximately 18.7% MEAEENESREN187% (ZF=—
of the Group's total shipment value (2021: approximately 17.4%). F 0 49174%) o
Shipments grouped under "Others’, comprising mainly shipments [ »$IBE THNEEFTERERH
to the southern hemisphere, dropped by approximately 17.3% FER R ADEI173% RN —RBEIERF
due to less orders from a South African customer. “Others” ZEJER D o [Hit [hZo BN EEBED
represented approximately 7.1% of the segment’s total shipment 71%(ZF = —%F : #989%) °

value (2021: approximately 8.9%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE W RO

The trading and supply chain management services segment R-E-—F EHRHEBEEERESE
recorded revenue of approximately US$26.7 million in 2022 (2021: SRS U 25 4926,700000F T (ZE = —F : 4
approximately US$29.6 million), accounting for approximately 29,600,000 7T) AN B AU EE 49 51.5% (=
51.5% of the Group’s total revenue (2021: approximately 47.3%). T —F 49473%) c BEMESE N B
The approximately 9.8% decline in revenue despite growth in W TE#98%  TERRAFERmIE
shipment volume was mainly due to the approximately US$3.6 B 493,600,000 F T ©

million drop in the sales of merchandise during the year.

Operation of online social platforms () KEEHFHXFE
During the review year, revenue from operation of online social REBEFE gE@E Lt Fazlamh
platforms fell by approximately 23.8% to approximately US$25.1 T — — £ #933,000,0003F JTLE D #)238% = —
million in 2022 from approximately US$33.0 million in 2021. £ — 4 #925,100,000F T °
I I I
2022 2021
—E=-= T —F
US$’ million US$" million
EE-E BEET

Gamified social and online entertainment PR R AR IR g 27.0
Sales of goods EmigE 6.0
The domestic PRC economy has been on a downtrend since the B OmiconEE BT - —FF-F
second quarter of 2022 due to the spread of Omicron. Lockdowns JELAZKE - AR NEBE—BERN T8 -
in many cities forced shops to close as well as limited online ZEW TR HAEEEEE RTS8
live broadcasting and offline activities. With stifled online and FTEERGTESZIRS - ARG LEET
offline traffics and poor economic prospects greatly dampening MERLUREENS NMERENS T H
consumption sentiment, revenue from gamified social and BEX AFERBERCTR R LR
online entertainment and sales of goods for the year fell by LR mIEE N ED R T BA21.1% K4
approximately 21.1% and approximately 36.2%, respectively. 36.2% °

As for sales of pop toys, they were also affected by severe ZEREARTENBEENIIHMAEER L
competition and the new compliance guideline released by BMEEERBER S _FFVEMHN
Shanghai market regulators in early 2022. EMmESI e -
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B FF®



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWm AT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Financial Resources and Liquidity

The Group had deposits and cash and cash equivalents of
approximately US$18.2 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately US$16.1 million). In addition, it had total banking
facilities of approximately US$5.6 million including borrowing facilities
of approximately USS$0.5 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately US$6.3 million and approximately US$1.3 million,
respectively).

The Group's current ratio was approximately 1.8 (2021
1.5) and gearing ratio was approximately 0.04 (2021

11), based on an interest-bearing borrowing of approximately
US$0.4 million (2021: approximately US$1.2 million) and total equity
of approximately US$11.3 million as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately US$11.0 million). There has not been any material
change in the Group’s borrowings since 31 December 2022.

: approximately
: approximately

Trade receivables amounted to approximately US$3.2 million as at
31 December 2022 (2021: approximately US$8.0 million). Gross trade
receivables aged over 90 days, which amounted to approximately
USS1.1 million, are being carefully monitored by management and
sufficient provision has been made.

The Group adopts a prudent treasury policy in managing investment
in financial products such as wealth management products. All
investments must be conducted in accordance with the Group’s
treasury policy with the view of utilising surplus cash received from its
business operations.

The Group’s net asset value amounted to approximately US$11.3
million as at 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately US$11.0 million).

The majority of the Group’s transactions during the review year were
denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars. To
minimise exposure to foreign exchange risks, sales and purchases are
generally transacted in the same currency.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities or guarantees, or charges on any of its assets.

Remuneration Policy and Staff Development Scheme

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had 270 employees (2021: 301).
Total staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2022 amounted to
approximately US$12.2 million (2021: approximately US$12.6 million).

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to its employees
based on industry practices, and performance of the individual
employee and that of the Group. In addition, the Company has in place
a share option scheme for eligible persons and discretionary bonuses
are payable to staff members based on their individual performance
and that of the Group as a whole.

PROSPECTS
With most COVID-19 pandemic restrictions lifted and consumption-

stimulating policies rolled out, the PRC's economy is expected to
gradually recover, while the global economy continues to feel the
weight of the Russia-Ukraine war, and high inflation and weak demand.
The management expects the first half of 2023 to be challenging for its
trading and supply chain management services business. Trade volume
is expected to drop given most customers are already holding a high
level of inventory. Customers are taking a more cautious approach in
placing orders and have continued to demand lower prices, posing
rising pressure on the Group’s turnover and overall performance in
the first half of 2023. Depending on how quickly customers are able to
clear their current inventory as the economy picks up, trade volumes
may gradually increase in the second half year. The Group will continue
to work closely with customers and supply chain partners to provide
comprehensive value-added services to brace customer needs while
exercising stringent cost control.

After taking a hard hit during the lockdowns in 2022, the Group expects
to see more new users joining the online social platforms and in-game
currency sales picking up in 2023, now that anti-pandemic restrictions
are relaxed and consumer sentiments may improve. However, this
business segment is expected to continue to face a harsh operating
environment in 2023, with online channels having tighter regulations
to navigate, coupled with intensifying competition. To increase player
count and ultimately boost revenue, the Group will continue to partner
with other online platforms, expand its sales and distribution channels,
and upgrade gameplay by introducing new and flexible functions. The
Group is cautiously optimistic to see the recovery in the second half of
2023.

In the short term, the Group expects its core businesses to remain
under pressure, given the weaker customer demand and unfavourable
macroeconomic conditions in the global market. In the longer run,
however, the gradual economic recovery in the PRC and overseas
markets will eventually support the Group to pick up its performance.
In the meantime, the Directors will remain focused on strengthening
the Group'’s market position by improving its sales channels, enhancing
its offerings, and closely monitoring macroeconomic development to
adjust the Group’'s strategies accordingly.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEER
Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Xijian (“Mr. Zhou"), aged 48, was appointed as a non-
executive Director and the chairman of the Board on 5 February
2015. Mr. Zhou is the chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company (the “Nomination Committee’) and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company (the “‘Remuneration
Committee’).

Mr. Zhou has over 20 years of business experience, and completed a
postgraduate programme in Management and Business Administration
from the Business School of Nanjing Normal University in 2011.

Mr. Zhou is the president of Dache Group Co,, Ltd* GEFMEEGR A
A]) ('Daohe Group”). Daohe Group is a multi-industry company which
is engaged in a wide range of businesses including but not limited to
liquor, drinking water, film and television, catering and internet
technology. Mr. Zhou has been the chairman of Beijing Pai PR
Communications Co., Ltd.* (3t IR & X L EEH B R A &)
since January 2016, the shares of which were quoted on the National
Equities Exchange and Quotations in the People’s Republic of China
(stock code: 839457) from 1 November 2016 to 31 January 2023. Mr.
Zhou was a director and the chairman of Huaren Pharmaceutical Co,,
Ltd* (FEC B E B B R A 7)) (formerly known as Qingdao Huaren
Pharmaceutical Co, Ltd* (B S ZE X ) B R 2 7)) (‘Huaren
Pharmaceutical’) from September 2017 to July 2019. The shares of
Huaren Pharmaceutical are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
(stock code: 300110). Mr. Zhou was ordered by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission (“CSRC") to refrain from acting as a director,
supervisor or a member of the senior management of Huaren
Pharmaceutical, or those of other listed companies or non-listed public
companies or participate in any securities business of Huaren
Pharmaceutical and that of any other entities for a period of 3 years
from 6 May 2021 (being the date of publication of the order of the
CSRC) and was fined with Renminbi 1,500,000 by the CSRC for
breaching the Securities Law of the People’s Republic of China in
manipulating the securities market in respect of the shares of Huaren
Pharmaceutical.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis ("“Mr. Wong"), aged 53, was appointed
as an executive Director on 1 September 2010 and was appointed as
the chief executive officer of the Company on 1 January 2019. He is the
chairman of the executive committee (the "Executive Committee”)
and the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the
Company (the "ESG Committee”) and holds directorship of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. Wong has been the President of the
Group since 5 February 2015. He was the chief financial officer of the
Group from January 2006 to January 2017

Prior to that, Mr. Wong was the head of corporate development
department of a Greater China based supply chain management
solutions provider and consumer products distributor, primarily
responsible for business development, mergers and acquisitions and
investor relations activities. Previously, Mr. Wong had worked at several
major international financial institutions where he gained extensive
experience in finance, investments and banking. Mr. Wong holds a
Master of Business Administration degree in finance from Boston
University in the United States of America, and a Bachelor of Science
degree from The University of British Columbia in Canada.

Mr. LONG Liping ("Mr. Long"), aged 48, was appointed as an
executive Director on 16 April 2019. Mr. Long is a member of the
Executive Committee.

Mr. Long has over 10 years of experience in management, risk control
management, auditing and accounting fields. Mr. Long is currently a
visiting professor of Hohai University, a president (finance) of Zhong
Xing Yong He Investments Co. Ltd.* (FR Bk 1% & B R A
chairman of the Medical and Health Committee of China Hong Kong
Economic Trading International Association and a vice chairman of

, vice

Hunan Chamber Commerce Jiangsu Province. Prior to that, Mr. Long
was a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Nanjing Lishui District and a \/ice president (risk control)
of Daohe Group Co, Ltd* (BEFE BB R A
a vice president (finance) of Nanjing Joyl\/lam Soence and Technology
Development Co. Ltd* (A R A RBIFERER A F

certified public accountant of Zhongxingcai Guanghua Certlﬂed Public

, an audit director and
), and a
Accountants. Mr. Long is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified

Public Accountants. He holds a Master of Agricultural Promotion
degree from Huazhong Agricultural University.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SE=kafgEEER

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang (“Mr. Wang"), aged 62, has been an
independent non-executive Director since 22 April 2002. Mr. Wang is
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the audit committee of the Company (the "Audit Committee”) and
the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Wang is a managing director of 698 Capital Limited, a private Asian
investment firm. Previously, Mr. Wang was also a member of the board
and audit committee of NASDAQ listed Homeinns Hotel Group, one
of the China’s leading hotel chains. Mr. Wang was a member of the
board and the chief executive officer of GigaMedia Limited, a NASDAQ
listed online entertainment and game provider. Mr. Wang was also
previously a co-founder and executive director of KGI Asia Limited, an
investment bank and securities brokerage. Mr. Wang has also served
on the board of directors of several finance and technology companies
in the region and was previously a member of the board and the
chairman of the audit committee of Softbank Investment International
(Strategic) Limited (now known as SoftMedx Healthcare Limited) (stock
code: 648), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr.
Wang received his Juris Doctorate degree from Yale Law School and
practised corporate and securities law in Hong Kong and New York. He
also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of California at
Los Angeles in the United States of America.

Daohe Global Group Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. LAU Shu Yan ("Mr. Lau"), aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 January 2017. Mr. Lau
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the ESG
Committee.

Mr. Lau is currently a partner of an audit firm. He had previously worked
in an international accounting firm and has over 10 years of experience
in finance, auditing and accounting fields. Mr. Lau is currently an
independent non-executive director, chairman of the audit committee
and nomination committee, and member of the remuneration
committee of Perfectech International Holdings Limited (stock code:
765), the securities of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lau graduated from the University of Newcastle upon
Tyne, United Kingdom with a Bachelor of Arts degree majoring in
accounting and financial analysis. He is a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Lau was formerly an
independent non-executive director of Hephaestus Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Union Asia Enterprise Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 8173) from 31 December 2015 to 13 November 2019, the
securities of which are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange. He
was also an independent non-executive director and chairman of the
audit committee of Shenzhen Mingwah Aohan High Technology
Corporation Limited* (3= 31| 1 B 22 8% B AR 19 B R A &)) (stock
code: 8301, and its securities were delisted from the GEM of the Stock
Exchange on 6 December 2021) from 30 September 2016 to 9 April
2020.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPH\CAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEMEREEEER

Mr. ZHANG Huijun (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 January 2017. Mr. Zhang
is a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Zhang is currently a vice-chairman of each of China Film
Association, Beijing Film Specialist Association and Beijing Film and TV
(IREREMRIH ),
Council for the Promotion of Art Education, a tutor and professor of the

Artist Association* ), deputy director of China
Academy of Chinese Culture under Peking University, director of China
Research Institute of Film Technology* (*F B & % = 7 B 1T Aff 7567 )
vice chairman and standing member of the council of China Society of
Motion Picture and Television Engineers, member of each of the
Academic Degree Committee of the State Council and National Art
Professional Master Degree Education Steering Committee under the
Ministry of Education. He is also a member of Committee of Quality
Education in Higher Education Institutions under the Ministry of
(BRHBEBSEERZEHEIEZEF) head of
the higher education division under the Education Committee of China

Education*

Photographers Association, principal specialist of Beijing Film and
Television Art Research Centre, vice-president of China Advertising
Association of Commerce and a specialist enjoying special government
subsidies granted by the State Council. Mr. Zhang is also a tutor to
doctoral students and a professor of Beijing Film Academy in which he
was enrolled in 1978 (Class 78) as a student under the department of
photography and graduated with a Bachelor of Arts (cinematography)
degree in July 1982. In the same year, he assumed a teaching post at
his alma mater shortly after graduating with flying colours.

Mr. Zhang was a member of the national committee of the 10th and
11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference ("CPPCC"),
a member of the 10th and 11th CPPCC Subcommittee of Education,
Science, Culture, Health and Sports, as well as a specially invited
supervisor of the Ministry of Public Security. He has acted as the deputy
director of Beijing Film Academy for more than 10 years and the
director of Beijing Film Academy for more than 15 years.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Zhang was accredited the Outstanding Tutor Award* ({8 75 8§ &
R RIH 82) at the 99 Arts Festival for University Students Across China
1999* (2 B K 2 £ #1f7 &) co-hosted by the Ministry of Education,
Ministry of Culture, Central Committee of the Communist Youth
League of China, State Administration of Radio, Film and Television and
the Beijing Municipal Government. He was conferred Commendatore
dell’Ordine della Stella della Solidarieta Italiana (3rd Class) (22 A F{=
B2 EFE (ZHEE)) by the president of the Italian Republic in
recognition of his positive contribution to the promotion of cultural
exchange and friendly cooperation between the PRC and ltaly. Being
the awardee of Award of Special Contribution to the Nurture of Talents
(FEEEZAT BERFKAR
K #2) by the organising committee of Forum on International Cultural
Industries (China), Mr. Zhang has been engaged as a life member of the

for Cultural Industries of China*

judging committee of Macau International Movie Festival.

Being a famous cinematographer, director, producer in the PRC, as
well as a “fifth generation” leading figure of the PRC's movie industry,
Mr. Zhang has involved himself in the production of over 20 movies,
making enormous artistic achievement and winning numerous
prestigious awards at home and abroad. Besides, Mr. Zhang has
presented over 300 TV productions, including drama series and other
genres, in the capacity of director, cinematographer, organiser and
producer. He has written, compiled and undertaken over 20 academic
papers. He has undertaken research projects of state and provincial
level covering the aspects of science, education and technology as a
project leader or principal participant.

*  For identification purpose only

sEEkafEEEEH

RAEERBEAR XA KEERH R BXR
EREFERAB ML RMRFH A £ 2199
EEARBAEEME | EREESEGHAE]
REZANANBASE T ZANCEZED
B(ZAB5)] HHEEPBEEE AMEXL
?c;‘;ﬁﬂ?iﬁ%/—\{’?f’ﬁﬂjZWuﬂEEE?WL‘M%E 1
PEXCERX (BR) wEAZS[TEXXLER
Aﬁi*%ﬁhﬁﬂiaﬁkﬁﬁJZﬁfé% RELEER
ERRFBEREFHRETE

EATRRMEBELELM  BER - Z{EANURF
BEZEIEARIBEAY RioEGRERE
BP0 E - BlIEBIE 2 BT B I FE A &
JEONESEEE o N REENER - BEEEY
B - SRERBVEAF N EIBIBI0BERRE
BREEREESREMER FE2%  HEK
B TERCHEB20 M EMEE - I —ENIEE B
EA&EE/A%Z%@LﬁI%&é%WﬁE

OREMEZ - BAERRMER -

* ERAT)

THE&IIEIﬁBE’A\T
—FFR



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Daohe Global Group Limited (the “Company”) has adopted the
code provisions (the “ Code Provisions ") as stated in the Corporate
Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange’) as
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) of the Company. The
board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) is committed to
complying with the Code to the extent that the Directors consider it to
be applicable to the Company and suited to the needs and interests of
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”).

The corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise an
effective Board, sound internal controls, appropriate independence
policy, and transparency and accountability to all shareholders of
the Company (the “Shareholders”). The Company has applied the
principles of the Code to its corporate governance structure and
practices as described in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied
with all the applicable Code Provisions of the CG Code to the Listing
Rules.

(A) DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for
dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors.

The Company, having made specific enquiries, obtained
confirmations from all the Directors that they have complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The Company has also established written guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees
who are likely to possess unpublished inside information in
relation to the Company or its securities.

No incident of non-compliance with the Employees Written
Guidelines by the relevant employees was noted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2022.
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(B) BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2022, the Board had six Directors comprising
two executive Directors, one non-executive Director and three
independent non-executive Directors. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Company had at all times complied with
Rules 3.10 and Rules 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the
Company’s affairs during the year ended 31 December 2022.
The Company requests the Directors to disclose annually to
the Company the number and nature of offices held in public
companies or organisations and other significant commitments.

Independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Director
provide the Board with diversified skills, expertise and experience.
Their views and participation in Board and committee meetings
bring independent, constructive and informed comments on
issues relating to the Company’s strategies and policies to ensure
that the interests of all Shareholders are taken into account.

To ensure that independent views and input are available to
the Board, the Company has established mechanisms including
(i) strengthening the independent non-executive Directors’
recruitment process to include criteria such as each candidates’
available time commitments and qualification; (i) reviewing the
number of independent non-executive Directors on an annual
basis; (iii) performing additional assessment or evaluation of
independent non-executive Directors’ contribution; and (iv)
engage external independent professional advisors to assist
performance of directors’ duties when necessary. The Board
reviews the implementation and effectiveness of the above
mechanisms on an annual basis.

An updated list of the Directors identifying their roles and
functions is maintained on the websites of the Company and
the Stock Exchange. Independent non-executive Directors are
identified as such in all corporate communications containing the
name of the Directors.

Mr. ZHOU Xijian is a director and shareholder of Daohe Global
Investment Holding Limited (‘Daohe Global Investment’),
a controlling shareholder of the Company. Save as disclosed
above, none of the members of the Board has any relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s)) with each other.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section of this
annual report.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the "“Board
Diversity Policy’) on 30 August 2013 (which was revised on 14
December 2018) setting out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board.

The Company recognises the importance of having a diverse
team of Board members, which is an essential element in
maintaining an effective Board and enhancing corporate
governance standard. The Nomination Committee of the
Company is delegated the authority (@amongst other things) to
review and assess the diversity of the Board, with the objective of
maintaining an appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives on the Board which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to skills, knowledge,
industry and professional experience, cultural and educational
background, gender, age and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination
Committee shall discuss and where necessary, agree on the
measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board and
make recommendation to the Board. The Board may adopt
and/or amend from time to time (as applicable) such diversity
perspectives and/or measurable objectives that are appropriate
to the Company’s business and Board succession planning, as
applicable.

The Board's composition as at the date of this report under
diversified perspectives is summarised as follows:
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Designation Executive Director Non-executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director
fEa kAL WiTES FEMITEE BIUFHTEER
Gender Male
i3] L
Age Group y . P
=485 41-50 51-60 61-70
Education Background Bachelor Postgraduate
HEER 2+ HRE
Year of Service (year) upto5 6-10 11-15 over 20
RIS EHI(F) SLAR 6-10 11-15 2004
Professional Experience (year) 10-20 over 20
BRI 10-20 2004 £
1 2 3 4 5 6
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The Board aims to achieve gender diversity by the appointment
of one female director on or before 31 December 2024. To
develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to
achieve gender diversity, the Company has adopted relevant
hiring policies for considering candidates of senior management
positions which would take into account diversity perspectives
including gender diversity.

As at 31 December 2022, the ratio of male and female in the
workforce is 47% and 53%, respectively. As such, the Company’s
workforce, including the senior management, have achieved
gender diversity between males and females. The Company
would continue to take into account of diversity perspectives
including gender diversity in its hiring.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy
annually.

Director Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a director nomination policy (the
"Director Nomination Policy”) on 14 December 2018 setting
out the nomination procedures and the process and criteria to be
used by the Company in relation to the selection, appointment
and re-appointment of Directors to ensure that the Board
maintains an appropriate mix and balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives to the requirements of
the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall make reference to this Director
Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity Policy to nominate
suitably qualified candidates to the Board for it to consider and
make recommendations to the Shareholders for election as
Directors at general meetings or appointment as Directors to fill
casual vacancies or as an addition to the Board.
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Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage
on directors’ and officers’ liabilities of the Company and its
subsidiaries in respect of any legal actions taken against the
Directors and officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising
out of corporate activities.

Delegation by the Board

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes the responsibility for the leadership
and control of the Group and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Group by directing and supervising
the Group’s affairs. All Directors should make decisions objectively
in the best interests of the Company.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or
through Board committees. To ensure the Board is in a position
to exercise its powers in an informed manner, management
provides monthly management accounts and updates to the
Directors who also have full and timely access to all relevant
information and may take independent professional advice if
necessary. Furthermore, the types of decisions to be delegated
by the Board to management include implementation of the
strategy and direction determined by the Board, operation of
the Group’s businesses, preparation of financial statements and
operating budgets, and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

To comply with the requirement under the CG Code, the Board is
also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
including but not limited to:

- develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

- review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior
management;

- review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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- develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and - HE - REREREANEERES
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; R TEARERFM: &
and
- review the Company’s compliance with the code and - BAARAESTRNERRE(RE
disclosure in the corporate governance report. ERWME)NHIKEE o
During the year ended 31 December 2022, in addition RBE-ZT-_—_F+-_A=+—HILtFE "
to performing the above duties, the Board met regularly MRET LB EI EEETHEEUR
for reviewing and approving the financial and operating EtEBREERR  PEERTA LD
performance, the compliance of CG Code and corporate XERMEMNETHER  UEBERIERR
governance report, and considering and approving the overall AR IRBE IR o

strategies and policies of the Company.

The Company currently has five Board committees. The table ARFRBBREAEESEEZE S - THRIEHR
below provides membership information of these committees on EEFENETZEZESPETNEA -
which each Board member serves.

ESG
Board Committees Committee
EEZEe (Note 1)
Executive Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination &% # &Rk
Directors Comnmittee Committee Comnmittee Committee BREEE
Bz HTZEE  BHREZEE FMZEEE REZEE GER)
| | J | | |
Non-executive Director ~ FHTEE
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman) A&HR(ERF) M C
Executive Directors HITEE
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF C C
(Chief Executive Officerand ~ (fTBUAE 485
President)
LONG Liping RS M

Independent non-executive B FFHTES

Directors

WANG Arthur Minshiang T 8% M C M

LAU Shu Yan A C M

ZHANG Huijun REE M M M

Notes: B3

1. The ESG Committee has two other members, Mr. CHEUNG Tsun Ching and Ms. 1. RE- e kEA § E2SHEMENE  RES
LU Yuhua, who are not Board members. EEREREL LT  FEWFEEGRE -

C Chairman of the relevant Board Committees C FHEZZEEMER
Member of the relevant Board Committees M HHEEZEENKE

TDE&IIﬁlﬁBE’Ej
—FFR
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Board Meetings and Committees Meetings EEgeEREEEER
The attendance of individual Directors at the Board and its EEZHRARARBE_S__F+=
committee meetings, and the general meetings of the Company A=+—BLEFERTHESSREZE
held during the year ended 31 December 2022 is set out in the FERELBRRRENBEREINN T

following table:

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEE/EERH
Annual
Executive Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination ESG General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee  Committee Meeting
Name of Directors ESf? Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting ~ (the "AGM")
B&
RE HER  EEAE
EZe WfZRE EHZARE HMZRE RAZRE ERZRe (TR=®
L EE S Ef g3 g% B@FAg))

Non-executive Director F4TES

ZHOU Xijan A%k 45 - - /1 11 - /1
Executive Directors HTES

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BRF 5/5 00 - - - " 1
LONG Liping EHT 5/5 00 - - - - /1

Independent non-executive Directors ~~ BUFH{TES

WWANG Arthur Minshiang T 5/5 - 3 i 01 - /1
LAU Shu Yan BB A 5/5 - 3 - - /1 11
ZHANG Huijun FEE 5/5 - 3 1 11 - 1
Number of meetings held ERNETRY 5 0 3 1 1 1 1
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Apart from holding physical meetings, the Board and Board
committees also circulate written resolutions for approval by the
relevant members of the Board and Board committees except
for matters where a substantial shareholder or a Director has a
conflict of interest which the Board has determined to be material
in compliance with Code Provision C.5.7 of the CG Code.

The Board having considered the attendance records and training
records of the Directors and the confirmation provided by each
Director is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient time
performing his responsibilities. Key issues and decisions made
during the meetings were communicated to the Directors in a
timely manner.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Currently, the chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer ("CEQ") of the Group are Mr. ZHOU Xijian and Mr. WONG
Hing Lin, Dennis, respectively. The roles of Chairman and CEO
are segregated and their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

The Chairman’s principal role is to provide leadership for the
Board on corporate and strategic planning, ensure proper
proceedings of the Board and encourage all Directors to have
active contributions to the Board's affairs.

The CEO, supported by the other executive Director and
management, is to manage and operate the Group’s day-to-day
business, including the implementation of major strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board.

Non-executive Director

Mr. ZHOU Xijian, chairman and non-executive Director,
is appointed for a term of three years under his letter of
appointment. All Directors including non-executive Director are
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election at
the AGM at least once every three years in accordance with the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”). The Company has
issued a formal letter of appointment to Mr. Zhou setting out the
key terms of his appointment.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Every independent non-executive Director is appointed for a
specific term of two years under his letter of appointment. All
Directors including independent non-executive Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election at
the AGM at least once every three years in accordance with the
Bye-laws. The Company has issued formal letter of appointments
to its independent non-executive Directors setting out key terms
of their appointments.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive Director of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmation, the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

Independent non-executive Director who has served
for more than nine years

Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang has served as independent non-
executive Director for more than nine years. To comply with Code
Provision B.2.3 of the CG Code, Mr. Wang retired voluntarily and
was re-elected as Director at the AGM held on 27 August 2012,
27 August 2015, 30 August 2017 and 28 May 2020, respectively.
He will also retire by rotation and offer himself for re-election as
Director at the forthcoming AGM to be held on 2 June 2023.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development
Each newly appointed Director will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to the Directors at the
Company's expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates and presentations on
changes and developments relating to the Group's business and
the legislative and regulatory environments in which the Group
conducts its business to the Directors.

The trainings received by the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2022 are summarised as follows:
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Attending seminars and/or
reading materials on legal
and regulatory updates,
corporate governance,
director’s duties and
responsibilities

Directors or group’s business
HEMHER /REE
BRLEREERTER
TEER EERER
BEx EASKEERNMR
| | |
Non-executive Director FHTES
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman) B (ER) /
Executive Directors HITES
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEEF
(CEO and President) (THEHFER) /
LONG Liping ERT /
Independent non-executive Directors UFUTES
WANG Arthur Minshiang FoH /
LAU Shu Yan LN /
ZHANG Huijun REE v/
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Company Secretary

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary, who is responsible for ensuring that the board
procedures are followed, advising the Board on all corporate
governance matters, and arranging induction programs including
briefings on the general and specific duties of directors under
legal and regulatory requirements for newly appointed directors.
The company secretary facilitates the induction and professional
development of directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, Ms. CHENG Sau Man,
company secretary of the Company, had received no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh her skills and
knowledge.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently has five committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and ESG Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

Terms of reference of all the committees are available on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the Company's website.

Current structure of the Board
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company's expenses.

Executive Committee
The Executive Committee currently consists of all the executive
Directors as follows:

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chairman)
LONG Liping

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation functions of the Group to the Executive Committee
save to the extent that certain powers and authorities are
reserved to the full Board or the other Board Committees.
The Executive Committee is also responsible for reviewing or
recommending to the Board the investment transactions of the
Group and has the power to approve transactions that would not
constitute notifiable transactions under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules, connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules or capital market activities.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no meeting was
held by the Executive Committee. The attendance of individual
Directors at the committee meetings is set out on page 22 of
this annual report. Apart from meetings, matters relating to
the management and day-to-day operations of the Company
requiring the Executive Committee’s approval were arranged by
means of circulation of written resolutions.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors as follows:

LAU Shu Yan (Chairman)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
ZHANG Huijun

None of the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner
of the Company’s existing external auditor.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the
Company'’s annual reports and accounts, interim reports and
results announcements and to provide advice and comments
thereon to the Directors. The Audit Committee also reviews and
monitors the external auditor's independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of the audit process. The members meet
regularly with the external auditor and the Company’s senior
management for the review and supervision of the Company’s
financial reporting, risk management and internal control systems.
The Audit Committee is also responsible for monitoring integrity
of the financial statements of the Company and the Company's
annual reports and accounts and interim reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgements contained in them.

As required by Code Provision D.3.7 of the CG Code, details
of arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control and other
matters have been included in the Employee Handbook since 1
April 2012.

The Audit Committee met three times during the year ended
31 December 2022. The attendance of individual Directors at
the committee meetings is set out on page 22 of this annual
report. Apart from the said meetings, matters requiring the Audit
Committee’s approval were arranged by means of circulation of
written resolutions.

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2022 includes:

(@) reviewed the financial statements and reports and
considered any significant or unusual items raised by
the head of finance division or external auditor before
submission to the Board;

(b) reviewed the interim and annual results of the Group,
discussed and approved the relevant financial reports,
reviewed the Group’s internal control system;

(c) approved the risk assessment report and review the 2022
Internal Audit Plan;

(d) reviewed the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, their
fees, terms of engagement and independence, and made
recommendation to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of external auditor proposed by management;
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(e) reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
internal audit function, financial reporting system, internal
control system, risk management system and associated
procedures; and

(f)  reviewed and recommended the Board to approve the
revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee, if
required.

Private session between the Committee members and the
external auditor without the presence of the management had
also been arranged.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection and appointment of the external
auditor during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
members, the majority of which are independent non-executive
Directors, as follows:

WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman)
ZHOU Xijian
ZHANG Huijun

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the Company’s
policy and structure for all the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
is also responsible for establishing formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policy and structure to
ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration, which remuneration will
be determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the chairman and/
or the CEO of the Company about their recommendations on
remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.
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The Company adopted Code Provision E.1.2(c)(i) out of the two
models suggested by the CG Code. As a result, the Board as a
whole is responsible for determining the remuneration of non-
executive Directors whereas the Remuneration Committee has
the authority to approve the remuneration of the individual
executive Directors and senior management of the Company and
its subsidiaries as well as share options related matters.

The Company amended the terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee, which took effect from 21 December
2022, in order to conform to the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG
Code which took effect on 1 January 2023.

The Remuneration Committee met once during the year ended
31 December 2022. The attendance of individual Directors at the
committee meetings is set out on page 22 of this annual report.
Apart from the said meeting, matters requiring the Remuneration
Committee’s approval were arranged by means of circulation of
written resolutions.

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2022 includes:

(@) reviewed and determined the policy for the remuneration
of the executive Directors and senior management;

(b) assessed the performance and approved the discretionary
bonus of executive Director; and

(c) reviewed and recommended the Board to approve the
revised terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
the majority of which are independent non-executive Directors, as
follows:

ZHOU Xijian (Chairman)
WANG Arthur Minshiang
ZHANG Huijun
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the

following:

i)

(ii)

(iii)

review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company's corporate strategy;

identify individual suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship;

assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, having regard to the requirements of the Listing
Rules;

make recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the Chief
Executive; and

ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, knowledge,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business, and in that regard,
the Nomination Committee should assist the Board to
formulate and review a policy concerning diversity of Board
members.

The Nomination Committee met once during the year ended 31
December 2022. The attendance of individual Directors at the
committee meetings is set out on page 22 of this annual report.

Apart from the said meeting, matters requiring the Nomination

Committee’s approval were arranged by means of circulation of

written resolutions.

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2022 includes:

(a)

reviewed the Directors who were due to retire pursuant to
the Bye-laws and the CG Code and recommended that they
be subject to retirement and re-election at the 2022 AGM;

considered the renewal of the letters of the appointment
of the independent non-executive Directors and made
recommendations to the Board for such to be approved, if
the Board thought fit;
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reviewed the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

assessed the independence of each independent non-
executive Directors;

reviewed and recommended the Board to approve the
revised terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, if
required; and

reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Director
Nomination Policy.

Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
The ESG Committee currently comprises four members, of
which one is an executive Director, one is an independent non-
executive Director and two employees, as follows:

Mr. WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chairman)
Mr. LAU Shu Yan

Mr. CHEUNG Tsun Ching

Ms. LU Yuhua

The main duties of the ESG Committee include the following:

(i)

(iii)

formulating, and reviewing the implementation of the
environmental, social and governance policy, strategies and
structure;

assessing and managing issues of environmental, social
and governance risks and evaluating and determining
opportunities in the context of its business strategy; and

reviewing the environmental, social and governance
report and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to promote the development and implementation of the
environmental, social and governance works of the Group.

The work performed by the ESG Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2022 includes:

(a)

reviewed the terms of reference and their effectiveness in
discharging its duties and recommended to the Board if
revision is required; and

monitored and reviewed current and rising environmental,
social and governance trends and issues in understanding
emerging environmental, social and governance matters
that affect the Group's operations.
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(D) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board places great importance on risk management and
internal control and has ultimate responsibilities for overseeing
management in the design, implementation and monitoring of
the risk management and internal control system of the Group
on an ongoing basis. Such risks would include among others,
material risk relating to ESG. The Board is also committed to and is
responsible for reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The Group established the risk management and internal control
systems with aims to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses
caused by judgment in decision making process, human error,
fraud or other irregularities.

In order to comply with the applicable CG Code to the
Listing Rules, the Board has retained an external independent
professional firm as the outsourced internal auditor with a view
to facilitating adequacy of resources and quality of review to
satisfy the Group’s internal audit function as required by the Stock
Exchange and to assist the Board to perform annual reviews on
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems for the year ended 31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
maintained an internal audit charter which defines the scope and
the duties and responsibilities of the internal audit function and
its reporting protocol. The Group has conducted an annual risk
assessment which identified respective strategic risks, operational
risks, financial risks and compliance risks for the Group. Based on
the risk assessment results following a risk based methodology
audit approach, a three-year audit plan was devised which
prioritised the risks identified into annual audit projects. The
annual review was performed according to the audit plan with a
view to assisting the Board and the Audit Committee to evaluate
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and internal
control systems. The review also covered the compliance of CG
Code to the Listing Rules, material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls at entity and operational
levels. The Group has taken further steps to enhance its risk
management and internal control systems according to some
weaknesses identified during risk assessment and examination of
the internal control and strengthen the implementation of all the
risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group has established procedures in handling and
dissemination of inside information in an accurate and secure
manner and to avoid possible mishandling of inside information
within the Group. The Policy on Disclosure of Inside Information
provide a guide to the Company’s directors, senior management,
officers and relevant employees in handling confidential
information, monitoring information disclosure and responding
to enquiries.

Based on the risk management and internal control systems
established and maintained by the Group, the work performed by
the external auditor, the internal auditor, and reviews performed
by the management, respective Board Committees and the
Board, the Audit Committee and the Board are of the view that
the Group has maintained effective and adequate internal audit,
risk management and internal control system during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 and confirmed that the consolidated financial
statements contained herein give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2022, and of the consolidated financial performance and the
consolidated cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022. In preparing the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2022, the Directors, with the assistance of the
management, selected the suitable accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgements and estimates that
are prudent, and prepared the accounts on the going concern
basis. Such acknowledgement should be read in conjunction
with, but be distinguished from, the Independent Auditor’s
Report of the external auditor of the Company, RSM Hong Kong
("RSM"), in relation to their reporting responsibilities as set out in
their auditor’s report on pages 64 to 69 of this annual report.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company's and the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.
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(F)

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2022 have been audited by RSM. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, fees charged by RSM for audit
services amounted to approximately US$221,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,719,000).

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication
policy and posted it on the website of the Company setting

out the principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’

communications, with the objective of ensuring that Shareholders
are informed of balanced and understandable information about
the Company (including the Group's strategies, businesses,
major developments and financial performance) in a factual
and timely manner and to enable them to exercise their rights
as Shareholders in an informed manner. The Company aims to
be open and transparent with its Shareholders and encourages
Shareholders” active participation at the Company’s general
meetings.

Information would be communicated to the Shareholders
mainly through the Company’s corporate communications (such
as interim and annual reports, announcements and circulars),
AGMs and other general meetings, as well as disclosure on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. Interim
reports, annual reports and circulars are sent to the Shareholders
in a timely manner and are also available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Company’s and the Stock
Exchange's websites provides Shareholders with the corporate
information.

Shareholders are provided with contact details of the Company as
set out in “Shareholder Information” section to this annual report,
such as telephone hotline, email address and postal address, in
order to enable them to make any query that they may have with
respect to the Company. They can also send their enquiries to
the Board through these means. In addition, Shareholders can
contact Tricor Standard Limited, the Hong Kong branch share
registrar of the Company, if they have any enquiries about their
shareholdings and entitlements to dividend.
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The Company's AGM allows the Directors to meet and
communicate with Shareholders. The Company ensures that
Shareholders' views are communicated to the Board. All Directors
attended the 2022 AGM in person or by electronic means to
ensure that an effective communication was carried out with
the shareholders of the Company. The chairman of the AGM
proposes separate resolutions for each issue to be considered.
AGM proceedings are reviewed from time to time to ensure that
the Company follows good corporate governance practices.
The notice of AGM is distributed to all Shareholders at least 21
clear days prior to the AGM and the accompanying circular also
sets out details of each proposed resolution and other relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules. Separate
resolution is proposed for each issue to be considered at the
meeting. Each proposed resolution in general meeting will be
put to vote by way of a poll. The procedures for conducting a
poll are explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.
Voting results are posted on the Company’s website on the day
of the AGM.

After taking into account that the Shareholders have multiple
channels to communicate their views as mentioned above as
well as the steps taken by the Board to solicit and understand the
views of Shareholders and stakeholders during the year ended
31 December 2022 including but not limited to open discussion
with the Shareholders during the AGM, the Board’s review of
the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy was found to be sound and adequate.

Dividend Policy

The dividend policy of the Company (the “Dividend Policy”)
is in place setting out the principles and guidelines that the
Company intends to apply in relation to the declaration, payment
or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the Shareholders.

The Board shall take into account the following factors when
considering the declaration and payment of dividends:

- financial results;

- cash flow situation;

- business conditions and strategies;

- future operations and earnings;

- capital requirements and expenditure plans;

-  interests of shareholders;

- taxation consideration;

- any restrictions on payment of dividends; and

- any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.

The Dividend Policy shall be reviewed when necessary, and can
be revised by the Board from time to time.
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(G) SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures to convene a general meeting and put
forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws, any one or more
Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
(the "SGM") to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition, including making proposals
or moving a resolution at the SGM. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do so in
accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (the “Companies Act’).

Shareholders may by written requisition request, deposit at
the registered office of the Company, inclusion of a resolution
relating to matters in a general meeting by following the
requirements and procedures as set out in Sections 79 and 80 of
the Companies Act.

The above request can be sent to the Company at its head office
and principal place of business as set out in the “Corporate
Information” section of this annual report for the attention of the
Company Secretary.

Subject to the provisions of the above-mentioned sections
of the Companies Act, on the written requisition of members
representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights or 100 members, at the expense of the requisitionists
unless the Company otherwise resolves, the Company shall
give Shareholders notice of any resolution which may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting and a
relevant statement.

Shareholders may also propose a person for election as director,
the procedures for which are available on the Company’s website.
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Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can send their enquiries about shareholdings, share
transfer, registration and payment of dividend to Tricor Standard
Limited, the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office
of the Company. Other Shareholders'enquiries can be directed to
the head office and principal place of business of the Company
as set out in the “Corporate Information” section of this annual
report for the attention of the Company Secretary.

Details of the Shareholders’ rights and communication policy are
also available on the Company’s website.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company

has amended the Bye-law mainly to align with the relevant
amendments to the Listing Rule in relation to a set of core
shareholder protection standards. The amendments to the
corresponding bye-law were approved and adopted at the 2022
AGM held on 16 June 2022, please refer to the circular of the
Company dated 26 April 2022 for details.
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The board (the "“Board"”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Dache Global
Group Limited (the “Company”) present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31
December 2022 by business and geographical segments as well as
information about major customers is set out in Note 6 to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are set

out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 70.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 152 and 153.

DIVIDENDS
No interim dividend was declared and paid to shareholders of the

Company (the “Shareholders”) during the year ended 31 December
2022.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and likely future development,
a discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
and the material factors underlying its results and financial position
are included in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section on
pages 5 to 9 of this annual report.

The principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group include but
are not limited to (i) foreign currency risk as the Group has certain
investments in foreign operations, whose net assets are exposed to
foreign currency translation risk; (ii) credit risk that may arise from
possible default of the Group's business counter parties; and (jii) Loovee
Group (as defined below) are under VIE contractual arrangement as
disclosed under section headed “Contractual arrangements” to this
annual report.

The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities held in
currencies other than the United States dollar and Hong Kong dollar
to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties.
It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedure. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to better protect the environment by
encouraging its employees to reduce consumption of electricity
and paper, reduce waste, and use environmental friendly products
whenever possible. The Group is subject to various environmental
laws and regulations set by the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
national, provincial and municipal governments which include
regulations on discharge of wastes and air pollution. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group has complied with such laws
and regulations that have significant impact to the Group. Details
of the relevant policies are set out in the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report to be published by the Company, which
will be available for inspection at the websites of the Company
(www. daoheglobal.com.hk) and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (www.hkexnews.hk).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (cor
Compliance
We have in place compliance procedures to ensure adherence to
the relevant laws and regulations including but not limited to The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), the Companies Ordinance, the Securities and
Futures Ordinance ("SFO"), Regulation of the People’s Republic of
China on Telecommunication* {4 2 A & #£ 1 B & 1= & 1) and
Administrative Measures for Internet Information Services* { & B 43
= BUIR 7 & I 31 5K ) that are relevant to the Group. Laws in other
jurisdictions may also apply to our non-Hong Kong operations in Hong
Kong, the PRC and elsewhere.

itinued)

The Board is responsible for reviewing and monitoring the Group's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, with the support and assistance of the company
secretarial department. The Group has also engaged external counsels
to provide advice regarding the rules and laws on the business
transactions when required.

As far as the Company is aware, save as already disclosed in the
Company’'s announcements or this annual report, it has complied with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group.

Key relationships with stakeholders

Employees

The Group's remuneration policy and staff development scheme are
set out on pages 8 to 9 of this annual report.

The Group implemented comprehensive mechanisms to ensure
that high standard of ethical business practices are adopted when
our employees are dealing with suppliers and service providers. Our
Employee Handbook states our policies in avoiding conflict of interest
and the whistle-blowing channels.

We are an equal opportunity employer. We embrace anti-discrimination
practices that protect potential and existing employees from being
disadvantaged or excluded on the basis of gender, age, family status,
sexual orientation, disability, race or religion.

We strictly comply with local laws and regulations concerning health
and safety at work.

* For identification purpose only
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Key relationships with stakeholders (continued)
Customers

(0

(i)

Trading and supply chain management services

Linmark Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Linmark
Group’) are engaged in trading and supply chain management
services. As a global supply chain management solutions provider
and business partner, the Linmark Group offers diverse and
comprehensive services to a wide range of customers including
some of the world’s leading retailers, well known brands,
wholesalers, mail order houses and department stores in North
America, Europe, Australia and South Africa. The Group continues
to strengthen ties with the customers and strives to meet their
growing demand on price and service level by reaching out for
new supply base and expanding into new product categories.
To improve the customer service level, the Group has set a
claim alert system to record and track the status of claims and
complaints received from customers.

Operation of online social platforms

Loovee Holdings Inc. ("Loovee”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Loovee Group”) are principally engaged in gamified social,
and online entertainment, thereby providing various social and
entertainment services to a number of individual users in the
PRC. In future, we shall continue to enhance the user experiences,
customer service capability and corresponding customer service
for products, so as to meet the demand of our partners and
customers. Meanwhile, we have also set up a user suggestion
system, so that users can make suggestions and comments on
our products at any time.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Key relationships with stakeholders (continued)

Suppliers

() Trading and supply chain management services
Linmark Group operates an international sourcing network with a
focus on emerging markets. Supplier management is the core of
our supply chain business, all the suppliers have been evaluated
by the Group based on their expertise, experience, production
capabilities and other production factors, and are subject to
constant performance review and evaluation by the Group
to improve their quality and efficiency. In addition, the Group
has developed an extensive Corporate Social Responsibility
Compliance Manual and Vendor Code of Conduct, and has a
complete quality assurance procedure in place for products
produced by suppliers before shipping to customers.

(i) Operation of online social platforms

Loovee Group has established cooperation relationship with
a number of partners in the PRC, including online application
markets (e.q. B FI & (Tencent Appstore), 2 & FE 2 T
% (Huawei AppGallery)), Internet Data Centre services companies,
etc. We also regularly evaluate and review the capabilities of and
relationships with our partners to increase the number of users or
sales volume.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 16 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company during the year ended 31

December 2022 are set out in Note 29 to the financial statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity and Note 36 to the financial statements
respectively.

The distributable reserves of the Company consisted of the aggregate
of contributed surplus and accumulated losses. The Company had no
reserve available for distribution to Shareholders as at 31 December
2022 (31 December 2021: Nil).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office in the Company during the year ended

31 December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report are:

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ZHOU Xijian

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis

LONG Liping

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WANG Arthur Minshiang

LAU Shu Yan
ZHANG Huijun

Pursuant to the annual written confirmations, all independent non-
executive Directors have confirmed their independence to the
Company pursuant to the Listing Rules and the Company considers
them to be independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. WANG Arthur Mishiang and Mr. LAU Shu Yan, in accordance with
Bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-laws, will retire at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has
a service contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transaction and significant related party
transactions are disclosed in this annual report and in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party to which a director of the Company or an entity
connected with a director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2022 or at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may incur
or sustain in or about the execution of the duties in his/her office
or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND

ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors

or chief executive of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the Listing Rules) had, or was deemed to have, any
interests in the long or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong)) which was required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which any such Directors or
chief executives of the Company is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or was recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO; or was required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code"), to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange or otherwise known by the Directors.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING BEERALTIREEBEE KRG - 8

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THECOMPANY AND BERHOREF P 2R @)
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)
Interests and short positions in the shares of the Company REQXBREEBEEIEZRAPZERZR

and its associated corporations KRB

Approximate

percentage in

Number of theissued share

Ordinary capital

Name of Directors Capacity Shares held (Note 2)
HERITRAE

FELZER BRBEDL

BEEnR 14 R EE (HM¥sE2)

| e I
Long positions in the shares of the Company

REAQABARGBZHER
ZHOU Xijian Interest of controlled

corporations (Note 1) 664,121,427 43.99%
JB 7 8 REGDEE 2 s ()
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis Beneficial owner 3,750,000 0.25%
BEF EmEEA
WANG Arthur Minshiang Beneficial owner 390,000 0.03%
TEHF EnEEA

Long position in the share of associated corporation — Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited
(“Daohe Global Investment”) (Note 1)

REBEIERO 2R - BENRRREEZERERAH
(TBMRRIRED (1)

ZHOU Xijian Beneficial owner 8,000 80%

EEEE EnfAB A

Notes: B 5T

(1) Of these shares of the Company (the “Share”), (i) Sino Remittance Holding Limited (1) ~ R&ZEARQERM ([REB ) & - () EEZRAR QR ([#
(“Sino Remittance”) owned 512,250,000 Shares, (i) Fame City Developments BE |) % 5B 512,250,000 B% B& 17 (ii) Fame City Developments
Limited (“Fame City") owned 59,690,535 Shares, (iii) Oceanic Force Limited Limited ([ Fame City |) # 4 59,690,535 % f% 1% * (jii) Oceanic
(“Oceanic Force”) owned 92,042,892 Shares and (iv) Winning Port International Force Limited ([ Oceanic Force |) # & 92,042,892 i% f% {5
Limited ("Winning Port") owned 138,000 Shares. Sino Remittance, Fame City, K (iv) Winning Port International Limited ([ Winning Port |)
Oceanic Force and Winning Port are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Daohe Global 75 138,000 B& J% 1 © ZE [ + Fame City * Oceanic Force ;&
Investment, which is in turn held by Mr. ZHOU Xijian (a non-executive Director) Winning Port BB FIRBITE 2 2 EMB AR - MBEMIER
and Mr. ZHANG Qi, as to 80% and 20% respectively. As such, Mr. ZHOU Xijian was HIEEREARBEE GERTES) KRB LEDRFE
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which Sino Remittance, 80% 2 20% #E 2 o Bt - BIFEFEF KRB ERIIEXVE 2
Fame City, Oceanic Force and Winning Port were interested by virtue of the &3+ B A R L AR /R R FE & - Fame City ~ Oceanic
provisions of Part XV of the SFO. Force F Winning Port P58 2 R R AR 19 #E %5 ©

(2)  Calculated on the basis of 1,509,592,701 Shares in issue as at 31 December 2022. 2 BR-IE-—F+-A=+—H2ZB%{TH1,509592701

B ETE -
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2022, save as disclosed below, the Directors were
not aware of any person (other than the Directors or chief executives
of the Company) who had any interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly, interested
in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any member
of the Group:

Long positions in the shares of the Company
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Name of
substantial Shareholders Capacity
TERRESEB 540

Approximate
percentage in
the issued share
capital of the

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

EmEA A )

Sino Remittance
[k

Beneficial owner (Note 1)

BamlEA AP

Oceanic Force

Interest of controlled
corporations (Note 1)

RESERZ S (M)

Daohe Global Investment

BIRKEE

Beneficial owner (Note 2)

EnEA A (EE2)

Legian Investment Limited

Interest of controlled

corporation (Note 2)
REGER 2 #E S (FsE2)

Z/HOU Congwei

R E

Number of Company
Ordinary Shares held (Note 3)
LR NN

ERITRAE

BEEER BAEs T
gl 4= (MF5E3)
512,250,000 33.93%
92,042,892 6.10%
664,121,427 43.99%
178,875,000 11.85%
178,875,000 11.85%
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Notes:

M Of these Shares, (i) Sino Remittance owned 512,250,000 Shares, (i) Fame City owned
59,690,535 Shares, (iii) Oceanic Force owned 92,042,892 Shares and (iv) Winning Port
owned 138,000 Shares. Sino Remittance, Fame City, Oceanic Force and Winning Port
are wholly-owned subsidiaries of Daohe Global Investment. As such, Dache Global
Investment was deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company in which
Sino Remittance, Fame City, Oceanic Force and Winning Port were interested by
virtue of the provisions of Part XV of the SFO.

(2) Mr. ZHOU Congwei was deemed interested in the Shares held by Legian Investment
Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. ZHOU Congwei, by virtue of the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO.

(3) Calculated on the basis of 1,509,592,701 shares in issue as at 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the year was
the Company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed
below, no equity-linked agreements that have, will or may result in
the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to enter into
any agreements that have, will or may result in the Company issuing
shares were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 or subsisted as at 31 December 2022.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Under the ordinary resolution passed at the annual general meeting
on 1 June 2021, the Board adopted a new share option scheme
(“2021 Share Option Scheme”) and simultaneously terminated the
share option scheme which was adopted by the Company on 29
August 2011. The 2021 Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years up to 2031. Under the 2021 Share Option Scheme,
the Board or a committee thereof may grant options (the “Share
Options’) to eligible persons to subscribe for Shares at a price per
share of at least the higher of (i) the closing price of a share as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of the offer of the relevant option; and (i) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of offer, provided that the exercise price shall in no event
be less than the nominal amount of one share. Written acceptance is
required on acceptance of the grant of options. The maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding
options granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme to be adopted by the Company from time to time must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the share capital of the Company in
issue from time to time. The Company has no legal or constructive
obligation to repurchase or settle the Share Options in cash.

Details of the 2021 Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. Purpose
The primary purpose of the 2021 Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

2. Eligible persons
The eligible persons under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
include:

(i) any Director or proposed Director (whether executive or
non-executive, including any independent non-executive
Director), employee or proposed employee (whether full
time or part time) of, or any individual for the time being
seconded to work for, any member of the Group or any
controlling shareholder of the Company or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or

(i) any holder of any securities issued by any member of the
Group or any controlling shareholder of the Company or
any company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the
Company; or
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SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

2.

Eligible persons (continued)

(i) any business partner or consultant that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services to, or
any supplier of goods or services to, or any customer of,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Total number of shares available for issue

The initial total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2021 Share Option Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date of approval of the 2021 Share Option Scheme (i.e.
1,509,592,701 shares). As at 31 December 2022, the total number
of shares available for issue under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
is 150,959,270, representing approximately 10% of the Company’s
issued share capital as at the date of this annual report.

Subject to the approval by the Shareholders, the aggregate
number of the Company's shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2021 Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of
the Company’s shares in issue from time to time.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2021 Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
to any eligible persons (including those cancelled, exercised and
outstanding options), in any 12-month period up to the date of
the latest grant shall not exceed 1% of the Company’s shares in
issue. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit must be
separately approved by the Shareholders in a general meeting.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

4.

Maximum entitlement for each eligible person
(continued)

Options granted to the independent non-executive Directors
or substantial Shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s shares
in issue and with an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the Company’s Share at the date of grant, in excess of HKS5
million resulting in the total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of options already granted and to be
granted to such person under the 2021 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant of such option must
be approved in advance by the Shareholders.

Time of exercise of options

Options may be exercised at any time commencing on the date as
the Board may determine and ending on such date as the Board
may determine but shall not exceed 10 years from the date of
grant (which is the date of offer of grant if the offer for the grant
of the option is accepted).

Minimum holding period of the option before it can
be exercised

The 2021 Share Option Scheme does not specify any minimum
holding period but the Board has the authority to determine the
minimum period for which a share option in respect of some or
all of the shares forming the subject of the share options must be
held before it can be exercised.

Acceptance and payment on acceptance

Offer for the grant of options must be accepted within 30
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. No
consideration is required to be paid by the grantee of an option
to the Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an
option.

Exercise price

The exercise price is determined by the Board, and will not be
less than the higher of the closing price of the Shares on the date
of offer of grant and the average closing price of the Shares for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer of
grant.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND SHARE OPTION SCHEME

(continued)

9. Remaining life of the 2021 Share Option Scheme
Subject to the earlier termination of the 2021 Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules governing the 2021 Share
Option Scheme, the 2021 Share Option Scheme will expire on 1
June 2031.

No share options were granted, outstanding, lapsed, cancelled or
exercised at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

As provided under the transitional arrangements under the amended
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, the Company could continue to make
grants to participants eligible under the amended Chapter 17 under
the existing Share Option Scheme until refreshment or expiry of the
existing scheme mandate, upon which the Company will be required
to amend the terms of the scheme to comply with the amended
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules and seek shareholders" approval for a
new scheme mandate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Save as disclosed in Note 32 to the financial statements, there was
no connected transaction or continuing connected transaction
undertaken by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report which was required to be
disclosed pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the significant related party transactions undertaken during
the year ended 31 December 2022 are disclosed in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

For those related party transactions that constituted connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be)
under the Listing Rules, these transactions are exempt from reporting,
annual review, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

Loovee through Loovee Science and Technology Development
Co., Ltd.* (R YT £ i B} 5% 79 % A [R X A]) (the "OPCO’) and
its subsidiaries (the “OPCO Group"), is principally engaged in the
development and operation of online social platforms. The OPCO is a
limited liability company established under the laws of the PRC and is
owned as to 80% by Mr. LI Feng* (%$%) and 20% by Mr. LIAO Guoxin*
(BZEL#T), equity owners of the OPCO nominated by the Company (the
"VIE Equity Owners").

* For identification purpose only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
On 24 April 2017, Loovee Science and Technology (Shenzhen) Co.,

Ltd* (BEMERMHE ORI B R A 7)), a company established under the
laws of the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Loovee (the
"WFOE"), the OPCO and the VIE Equity Owners entered into certain
structured contracts namely, the Exclusive Technology Consulting and
Services Agreement, the Business Operation Agreement, the Exclusive
Call Option Agreement, the Equity Interest Pledge Agreements, the
Powers of Attorney, the Commitment Letters and the Spousal Consent
Letters (collectively, the “VIE Contracts”) to enable the financial results,
the entire economic benefits and the risks of the business of the OPCO
Group to flow onto the WFOE and to enable the WFOE to gain control
over the OPCO Group (the “Contractual Arrangements”).

Financial contribution of the OPCO Group to the Group
The aggregate revenues of the OPCO Group that were attributable
to the Group through VIE Contracts amounted to approximately
US$24,160,000 for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:
approximately US$31,212,000). As at 31 December 2022, the net assets
attributable to the OPCO Group were approximately US$8,589,000
(2021: approximately US$11,444,000).

Reasons for the Contractual Arrangements

According to the then applicable Guidance Catalogue of Industries for
Foreign Investment (2015 Edition) ({ANFE 3% & E ¥ 58 B $%(2015
FhR))) when the Contractual Arrangement was entered into, value-
added telecommunications service business is restricted for foreign
investors and foreign ownership in such business (except e-commerce)
cannot exceed 50%, and in particular, internet cultural business
(except for music) is prohibited for foreign investors. According to
the prevailing Special Administrative Measures for Access of Foreign
Investment (Negative List) (2021 Edition) (the “Negative List"), the
aforementioned restrictions and prohibitions remain unchanged.

The OPCO Group is principally engaged in the development and
operation of online social platforms which is considered to be engaged
in the provision of value-added telecommunications services and
the internet cultural business, a restricted and prohibited business
respectively for foreign investors pursuant to the Negative List. As the
Group does not possess the required qualifications, Loovee cannot
directly or indirectly hold the equity interest in the OPCO as a foreign
investor.

In order to comply with the applicable PRC laws and regulations
including the Negative List, the WFOE, the OPCO and the VIE Equity
Owners entered into the VIE Contracts to enable the financial results,
the entire economic benefits and the risks of the business of the OPCO
Group to flow onto the WFOE and to enable the WFOE to gain control
over the OPCO Group.

* For identification purpose only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Summary of the major terms of the VIE Contracts

The following sets out the principal terms of the VIE Contracts, which
were in place since 1 June 2017:

1. The Exclusive Technology Consulting and Services Agreement
was entered into between the WFOE and the OPCO for an initial
term of 10 years from the date of execution (which may be
extended at the sole discretion of the WFOE), pursuant to which
the WFOE has the exclusive rights to provide the OPCO with
consulting services at a service fee that is equal to 100% of the
net profit of the OPCO after deducting taxes, costs and expenses
incurred during the course of business.

2. The Business Operation Agreement was entered into between
the WFOE, the OPCO and VIE Equity Owners for an initial term
of 10 years from the date of execution (which may be extended
at the sole discretion of the WFOE) pursuant to which the VIE
Equity Owners agreed that, without the prior written consent
from the WFOE, the OPCO would not enter into any transaction
or perform any act that could materially affect its assets,
businesses, personnels, undertakings, rights or operations. The
VIE Equity Owners also agreed (i) to vote for or appoint nominees
designated by the WFOE to serve as the directors, chairman,
general managers, financial controllers and other senior managers
of the OPCO; (ii) to accept and implement proposals set forth
by the WFOE regarding employment, day-to-day business
operations and financial management; and (iii) to unconditionally
transfer any dividend or other interest declared by the OPCO to
the WFOE.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Summary of the major terms of the VIE Contracts (continued)

3.

The Exclusive Call Option Agreement was entered into by
the WFOE, the OPCO and the VIE Equity Owners which shall
remain effective until all the equity interests in the OPCO held
by the VIE Equity Owners are transferred or assigned to the
WEFOE or its designated party. Pursuant to the Exclusive Call
Option Agreement, the VIE Equity Owners unconditionally and
irrevocably granted the WFOE an irrevocable and exclusive option
to purchase or designate one or more persons to purchase, to the
extent permitted under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, all
or part of their equity interests in the OPCO at the total purchase
price of RMB10,000 for 100% of the equity interests, or 1% of the
evaluation price or the minimum price permitted by the then
applicable PRC laws (if evaluation is required).

The OPCO also granted the WFOE an irrevocable and exclusive
option to purchase or designate another party to purchase, to the
extent permitted under the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
any or all of the assets owned by the OPCO (including its equity
interest in Leyi Science and Technology Co. Ltd*(& JI| T % &
BIEA R A 7)) at the lower of (i) the book value; and (i) the
minimum price permitted by the then applicable PRC laws.

The Equity Interest Pledge Agreement was entered into by the
WFOE (as pledgee) and the VIE Equity Owners (as pledgers)
which was effective on the date when the pledge of the equity
interests in the OPCO was registered on the register of members
of the OPCO and shall remain binding until the VIE Equity
Owners discharge all their obligations under the Contractual
Arrangements or termination of the VIE Contracts (other than the
Equity Interest Pledge Agreement).

Pursuant to the Equity Interest Pledge Agreement, the VIE Equity
Owners agreed to pledge all of their equity interests in the
OPCO (including any equity interest subsequently acquired or
subscribed) to the WFOE to guarantee the performance by the
OPCO and the VIE Equity Owners of their respective obligations
under the Contractual Arrangements.

* For identification purpose only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Summary of the major terms of the VIE Contracts (continued)

5.

The Powers of Attorney were entered into by the VIE Equity
Owners for an initial term of 10 years from the date of execution
(which may be extended at the discretion of WFOE). Pursuant to
the Powers of Attorney, each of the VIE Equity Owners irrevocably
appointed the WFOE as their attorney-in-fact to act for all matters
pertaining to the OPCO and to exercise all of their rights as
shareholders of the OPCO.

The Commitment Letters were entered into by the VIE Equity
Owners pursuant to which the VIE Equity Owners irrevocably
undertook that:

(i) for whatever reason the equity interests in the OPCO are
transferred or inherited to other person(s) (including but
not limited to bankruptcy, divorce or death of the VIE
Equity Owners), such transferee(s) or successor(s) shall be
legally bound by the VIE Contracts (as appropriate) and
such transfer or inheritance or other relevant arrangement
shall not contravene the VIE Contracts unless with the prior
written consent from the WFOE;

(i) all the equity interests held in the OPCO shall not form part
of their matrimonial property and all decisions made by
them in the OPCO shall not be affected by their spouses;

(i) they shall not, whether directly or indirectly through any
other person or entity, participate in, carry out, acquire or
hold any interest in any business which is or may be in
competition with the OPCO or its related companies, and
shall not do anything which gives rise to any conflict of
interest between them and the WFOE;

(iv) they shall transfer any assets of the OPCO obtained as
a result of the liquidation of the OPCO to the WFOE at
nil consideration or the lowest price permitted by the
applicable laws; and

(v)  they shall unconditionally return any proceeds received as a
result of the exercise of the option under the Exclusive Call
Option Agreement to the WFOE or its designated party.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Summary of the major terms of the VIE Contracts (continued)

7. The Spousal Consent Letters were entered into by the spouses
of the VIE Equity Owners (the spouse of each of the VIE Equity
Owners executed a Spousal Consent Letter separately). The
spouse of each of the VIE Equity Owners irrevocably agreed that:

(i) all the equity interests held by the VIE Equity Owners in
the OPCO and all the benefits generated from these equity
interests do not form part of their matrimonial property;

(i) all the benefits generated from the equity interests in the
OPCO belong to the VIE Equity Owners and can be dealt
with in any way by the VIE Equity Owners without the
consent of their spouses;

(i) the VIE Equity Owners may execute any supplemental
document to the relevant VIE Contracts without the
signature, confirmation, consent and approval from their
spouses; and

(iv) they shall be bound by the relevant VIE Contracts in the
event that they obtain any equity interest in the OPCO held
by the VIE Equity Owners for any reason.

Risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements and
actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks

The following are the risks associated with the Contractual
Arrangements. Further details of the risks were set out in the circular of
the Company dated 28 April 2017.

- The PRC government may determine that the VIE Contracts do
not comply with applicable regulations

- The VIE Contracts may not be as effective as direct ownership in
providing control over the OPCO

- The VIE Equity Owners may potentially have conflicts of interest
with the Group
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Risks associated with the Contractual Arrangements

and actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks

(continued)

-~ Certain provisions in the VIE Contracts may not be enforceable
under the PRC laws

- The Contractual Arrangements under the VIE Contracts may be
subject to the scrutiny of the PRC tax authorities and additional
tax may be imposed

- The Group does not have any insurance which covers the risks
relating to the VIE Contracts and the transactions contemplated
thereunder

- WFOE's ability to acquire the equity interests in the OPCO may be
subject to various limitations and substantial costs

- Economic risks the WFOE bears as the primary beneficiary of the
OPCO, financial support to the OPCO and potential exposure of
Loovee to losses

- Uncertainty to the Group when the foreign ownership restriction
in value-added telecommunications services is relaxed

In order to mitigate the risks of the Contractual Arrangements, the
Company had adopted a series of internal control measures including,
among others, appointing an executive director or senior management
to the board of the OPCO (the “Responsible Director’) to enforce all
management controls of the OPCO. As at the date of this annual report,
Mr. LI Feng*(Z= $%)has been appointed as the Responsible Director
and he had conducted regular site visits to the OPCO and conducted
interviews with the relevant senior management of the OPCO every six
months and submitted the interview notes to the designated Director
of the Board.

The Responsible Director will also consult the Company’s PRC legal
adviser (the “PRC Legal Adviser’) from time to time to check if there
are any legal developments in the PRC affecting the arrangement
contemplated under the VIE Contracts, and immediately report to the
designated Director of the Board thereafter so as to allow the Board to
determine if any modification or amendment is required to be made.

* For identification purpose only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Requirements related to Contractual Arrangements
(other than relevant foreign ownership restrictions)

1.

As advised by the PRC Legal Adviser, the VIE Contracts do not
violate mandatory provisions of laws and regulations of validity
nature, including those applicable to the business of the WFOE
and the OPCO, and the articles of association of the WFOE and
the OPCO. The VIE Contracts are legally binding on each relevant
party to the VIE Contracts and shall not be deemed as “concealing
illegal intentions with a lawful form” and void under the PRC
contract law. The GAAP's Notice 13 prohibits foreign investors
from using any agreements or contractual agreements to gain
control of or operate an online game business in the PRC. Taking
into account that details of the implementation and the scope
for execution of the GAAP's Notice 13 have not yet been issued
by the relevant authorities and based on confirmations by the
relevant authorities in the interviews with the same, the PRC
Legal Adviser is of the view that the VIE Contracts would not
constitute a violation of the GAAP’s Notice 13. The WFOE had
not encountered any interference or encumbrance from any
governing bodies in operating its business through the OPCO
under the VIE Contracts.

The VIE Contracts are governed by and will be construed in
accordance with the PRC laws and contain a provision for
resolving disputes by arbitration at South China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission* (ZE & [ B2 4%
EHE SR EZE 8 2)in accordance with its arbitration rules.
The VIE Contracts provide that the arbitration tribunal may
award remedies over the equity interests or assets of the OPCO,
injunctive relief (e.g. for the conduct of business or to compel the
transfer of assets) or order the winding up of the OPCO. The VIE
Contracts also include a clause in relation to dispute resolution
among the parties where, when awaiting the formation of the
arbitration tribunal or otherwise under appropriate conditions,
the parties thereto may seek temporary injunctive relief or other
temporary remedies from the courts in Hong Kong, Bermuda, the
PRC and the locations where the principal assets of the Company
or the OPCO are located. However, the PRC Legal Adviser is of
the view that pursuant to the PRC laws, the arbitration tribunal
may have no power to grant the aforementioned remedies
or injunctive relief or to order the winding up of the OPCO. In
addition, even though the VIE Contracts provide that overseas
courts (e.g. courts in Hong Kong and Bermuda) shall have the
power to grant certain relief or remedies, such relief or remedies
may not be recognised or enforced under the PRC laws.

* For identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FESREE

CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The Subject Persons Undertaking

Each of Mr. ZHOU Xijian, Mr. ZHANG Qi and Mr. ZHOU Congwei
(collectively, the “Subject Persons”) has undertaken to the Company
that (the “Subject Persons Undertaking’), after completion:

(i) he shall maintain his PRC nationality so as to be qualified as a "PRC
investor”; and

(i) he shall only dispose of any of his interest in the Shares, if:

(@) after such disposal, the Company shall still be considered as
“controlled” by “PRC investors”;

(b) all the other Subject Persons have given their written
consent to such disposal; and

(c) where the disposal would result in the Subject Persons
together holding not more than 50% voting rights in the
Company, the transferee in such a disposal must:

(1) bea"PRCinvestor”; and

(2)  provide the same undertaking to the Company as the
Subject Persons did.

Prior to such disposal, the Subject Persons must demonstrate to
the satisfaction of the Company and the Stock Exchange that the
Company shall remain “controlled” by “PRC investors” after such
disposal.

The aforesaid undertakings were made to the Company solely for
the purpose of complying with the relevant foreign investment
laws and related laws applicable to the Group from time to time in
connection with domestic investment and shall remain effective until
compliance with the relevant foreign investment laws and related
laws is not required and shall only terminate subject to the approval
of the Company and that the Subject Persons can demonstrate to the
satisfaction of the Company and the Stock Exchange that the Group
is no longer required to comply with the relevant foreign investment
laws and related laws in relation to domestic investment.

Each of the Subject Persons confirmed to the Company that they have
complied with the undertaking for the period from the completion of
acquisition, up to and until 31 December 2022.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The Company’s Undertaking

The Company has undertaken to the Stock Exchange (the “Company’s
Undertaking") that:

1. the Company shall at all times enforce the letters of undertakings
provided by the Subject Persons; and

2. save for any issue of new shares pursuant to the exercise of any
share options, the Company shall not issue any new shares to any
person(s) who is/are not the Subject Persons, whether pursuant
to the specific mandate and/or the general mandate from
the shareholders, unless the following conditions are satisfied:
(i) the aggregate shareholdings of all the Subject Persons
would represent not less than 50% (or such other percentage
shareholding in the Company as required by applicable PRC laws
and regulations from time to time as confirmed in writing by the
Company’s PRC Legal Adviser to ensure “control” of the Company
so that the VIE Contracts continue to be in full force and effect)
of the enlarged issued share capital of the Company, assuming
all share options have been fully exercised, upon completion of
such issue of shares; and (ii) the Stock Exchange has confirmed
in writing that it has no objection to the proposed issue of
shares. If so requested by the Stock Exchange, the Company shall
provide to the Stock Exchange a legal opinion issued by a PRC
Legal Adviser for its assessment of the implications (if any) of the
proposed issue of shares under the prevailing applicable PRC
laws and regulations.

The Company’s Undertaking shall continue in full force and effect
unless and until the Company is no longer required to comply with the
relevant PRC laws and regulations governing the VIE Contracts and the
Stock Exchange has given its written consent for the termination of the
Company's Undertaking.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the Company’s
Undertaking for the period from the completion of acquisition, up to
and until 31 December 2022.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EESHEE

MATERIAL CHANGES

Save as disclosed above, there had not been any material change in
the Contractual Arrangements and/or the circumstances under which
they were adopted for the year ended 31 December 2022.

UNWINDING OF THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

Pursuant to the relevant provisions of the VIE Contracts, the WFOE has
the right to unwind the VIE Contracts as soon as the relevant PRC laws
allow the WFOE to register itself as the shareholder of the OPCO. The
VIE Equity Owners have also undertaken that in the event the relevant
PRC laws allow the WFOE to operate the business of the OPCO without
the VIE Contracts in the future, they shall unwind the VIE Contracts and
return any consideration received if the WFOE or its designated party
acquires the equity interests in the OPCO from them.

Up to the date of this report, there has not been any unwinding of any
Contractual Arrangements, nor has there been any failure to unwind
any Contractual Arrangements when the restrictions that led to the
adoption of the Contractual Arrangements are removed.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND VENDORS OF THE GROUP

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the five largest customers
of the Group in aggregate accounted for approximately 36.2% of the
Group’s revenue and the largest customer accounted for approximately
19.2% of the revenue of the Group.

The five largest vendors of the Group in aggregate accounted for
approximately 29.4% of the Group’s total shipment volume placed by
the Group and the largest vendor accounted for approximately 11.8%
of the Group's total shipment value placed by the Group.

None of the Directors, their respective close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any interest in
the customers or vendors noted above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company, nor

any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any securities of
the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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DONATION
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group made charitable

donations of approximately HKS$3,000.

PUBLIC FLOAT
As at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the

prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There is no material subsequent event affecting the Group after
reporting period and up to the date of this report.

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the "“Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. LAU Shu Yan (Chairman), Mr. WANG Arthur Minshiang
and Mr. ZHANG Huijun. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the
management of the Company the audited financial statements.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young, who acted as the auditor of the Company since 11
December 2008, resigned on 28 October 2021 and RSM Hong Kong
("RSM") was appointed as the auditor of the Company by an ordinary
resolution passed in the SGM held on 7 December 2021.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2022 have been audited by RSM who will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
AGM. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM to re-
appoint RSM as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

ZHOU Xijian
Chairman and non-executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2023
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29th Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Daoche Global
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 70 to 151, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirement of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

RSM

BEPSE ISR

HEMBERTE /)R
NEZH - +n+18

RSM Hong Kong

T+8522598 5123
F+85225987230

&5 +8522598 5123
HH +85225987230

www.rsmhk.com www.rsmhk.com

(RERZELMELZBERLAF])

K EXHNRE70E 151 H #y Daohe Global
Group Limited B MR EEFR AR ([BA R )
REMBRAR (5E I EE®E])) MREMBHRE
EAMBERReER S _—F+_-_A=+—
BRGEMBERAREAEEZB IEFENREE
HR HEEZEMEZEKRER GEERE
B GARERERAMGEYBRRWE (&2
REIESHBEME) -

BPRE  ZEHREUBRRCKRE LG
RE((BERETMAE]) AROBBYBRESE
A((EBMBHREREU ) BEEMAFibRR &
SER-_ZB-__F+_A=+—BZHEEHBMNR
MAREBEZAULFEZEABHERARES
Reng YERARKIZEBEREZ SRR -

BPEREBESHMOSRMOBTBET LR
([BEREBTERN]DETER BANZFELR
THEEEARSZBMEEREEPBHRRZ
Bl - REFBSAMOGZIRES
EEETA(TFADRMABLIY EXELE
BRESTRIETEAMBREE - HFIEE - R
EENEZEBEATMEE R ASRMANEZE
RIRHERE -



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHERES

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, B IEF IR 2 HIET - B EZEE AR =&
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial ~ ARHEI4FA BB REP R EEHEIE - RFIEEE

iE =

statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in G AMBREMMLF KRS AEEEHESE
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements asa 1§ MA@ L EEESBREZE - KM H
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a  BI| > @i &= EIB 5 ¢

separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified is:

Key Audit Matter
HRELER

Assessment on expected credit loss (“ECL”") for trade receivables

FHEEWEZRBECEREESR((RBEEER])

Refer to Notes 4(j), 5 and 20 to the consolidated financial
statements

FELHERE PRI FEA() - 5 %20

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a carrying value of trade
receivables of US$3,210,000. An allowance of US$660,000 for
trade receivables has been made as at the year end.

AT _FF+ZA=+—H  BEEZEKEBEZEX
BREI{EA3210000% T - RFAER ESLEWE 5 RAE B
660,000 & 7T ©

In conducting the assessment on ECL for trade receivables,
management applied the simplified approach to measure the
lifetime expected loss allowance for trade receivables of the
Group. Management used judgement in making the assumptions
about the risk of default and expected credit loss rate with
reference to the historical loss rates, existing market conditions
and forward-looking estimates on macroeconomic factors.
RETEREZERZRPEEERZTHK  §1EE
ERBEREFE EXERKESIRRZ2HEHE
BEE TEEEFELABENRRREHEEEFERXM
BEFERHAE BHP2ZEEEEX BROmARY
ZEKBEE RO ML EE -

The assessment on ECL for trade receivables is our area of focus
given it is subject to estimation uncertainties and the significant
amount of the related balances.
HREKREZRFCBREEBE CTHIRMAEFT 2T
BMEURBEACEBE#SHE BHESRMENBT
ZEIE o

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BPNERNMEERREREE

We performed the following procedures in relation to the
management assessment on ECL for trade receivables:
BPEREREHRKESIREZAHEEREZT
HMITA TR ¢

understood, evaluated and validated management’s
controls and processes over customer’s credit controls
and collection of trade receivables, the assessment of
recoverability and the estimation of allowance for trade
receivables;

TR FAERFEEEEBHEPEEES RO E
WE 5 RRRE EHE AR Fp ~ AT EN 1 89 31 1 K2 fE W
B H RN HO G

assessing inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty and
level of other inherent risk factors such as complexity,
subjectivity, change, susceptibility to management bias
or fraud;

BAZRMF T HEUEEEREMERREREZ
K BR8N BULURBERRR
SHREF 2 BURR M - DART R B REEER MR 2 (BB @ Bg

obtained management’s assessment on ECL for trade
receivables and assessed reasonableness of assumptions
with reference to the historical loss rates, existing
market conditions and forward-looking estimates on
macroeconomic factors, and corroborated management’s
explanation to underlying documentation and external
market data on market conditions;
BSEEEHERE SRR EHEEBBNTMN -
W2EREBEE ROMAKRBEZELBERERN
AIE AT EBRENEE Y  UREEEEEY
AR S K T35 R 5 B SN B T 35 B P E AR AR

tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the ageing
profile of trade receivables at year end to invoices; and
BT AHREZAAFREREE ZERD
RN R

tested, on a sample basis, post-year end settlements
of trade receivables against cash receipts or other
supporting documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHERES

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Audit Committee for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirement of the
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYZHERES

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the REBMBERGRENBHRR 2EE @

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ms. Liu Fung Yi.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

30 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mAEEER

Year ended 31 December 202 EE —E - —F+-_A=1+—BILEE

2022 2021
—E-CF —_E-—
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FEx FET
| | ] |
REVENUE Wz 7 51,878 62,639
Cost of sales $HEE P AR (34,776) 41,727)
Gross profit EH 17,102 20,912
Other income E A 8 1,430 755
Selling and marketing expenses HERTSHERERY (2,619) (3,133)
General and administrative expenses —MRITEFE (14,248) (14,259)
Finance costs &R 9 (104) (107)
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries BB B A B 2 W - 277
Impairment of property, plant and equipment  #13 - &= K& R &R E 16 (20) =
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE 17 (499) =
Reversal of allowance/(allowance) for JEUWE IR KB E R B,
trade receivables (%) 20 219 (220)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR B A % Al 10 1,261 4,225
Income tax Fris i 13 (240) (139)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLETO &R B#H A
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FERF 1,021 4,086

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO ZA AlEERER
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BEANEEERER

COMPANY

(expressed in US cent) (LAZEALE75)) 15
Basic AR 0.07 0.27
Diluted e 0.07 027

Daohe Global Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GeERaRHMEENER

Year ended 31 December 2022 @Eig::iquﬁ] =t+t—RHLFE

| I
2022 2021
—g-—g —T--—#
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FER FET
I I I I
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEEA 1,021 4,086
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hit2EBA
ltems that may be reclassified to profitor MREZHMAIfES B HEE
loss in subsequent periods: BmIHE
Exchange differences: FE N Z5 :
Translation of foreign operations BREBINETS (744) 222
Reclassified to gain on dissolution BN EERBMBRTR
of subsidiaries ZWas - (277)
Items that may be reclassified to profitor A EZHMEAIEEEETHEE
loss in subsequent periods BmsIAB (744) (55)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit REZEET@EHMHEE
or loss in subsequent periods: BmIEE
Remeasurements from defined benefit ~ EFBBHEHE| 2 EFTE
plan 28(a) 24 8
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FEHMSEBA
FOR THE YEAR (720) 47)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ARAEEAEGEE2ZENK
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO ABEE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 301 4,039

DEJREI%IEBE/_\ A
ZFFR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
:-v_\éﬁji%;‘lﬁjﬂl%‘%

As at 31 December 202 R E - —_F+_-_HA=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note USs$’000 USS'000
P 5E FEx FET
I I I I
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB LG 16 305 562
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 17 765 779
Financial asset at fair value through BATEGFAERZZ
profit or loss PREE 18 167 135
Deposits ok 21 221 282
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,458 1,758
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 19 837 772
Trade receivables JEUE S5 ERK 20 3,210 8,006
Prepayments, deposits and TERRIE - e REM
other receivables fEUS FRIE 21 2,562 4,208
Bank deposits with initial term of over three M ERAE=@A 2
months RITER 3,724 =
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&FEBEEE 22 14,482 16,104
Total current assets MEEELE 24,815 29,090
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAE
Trade payables BT E SRR 23 885 4,253
Accruals, provisions and EFTEA - BEREM
other payables FEAS 5RTE 24 6,458 7,510
Contract liabilities BHERE 25 1,378 1,051
Lease liabilities HEARE 26 697 955
Loan from a shareholder KE—ZBREER 32(a) 3,856 3,856
Bank borrowings RITE 27 416 1,161
Tax payable FERIFEIR 446 305
Total current liabilities PEIBERE kS 14,136 19,091
NET CURRENT ASSETS MEEETFE 10,679 9,999
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ ERAERABEE 12,137 11,757

Daohe Global Group Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
RE IR
Asat 31 December 202 R —E - —F+_-_HF=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Note US$'000 Us$'000
B3 TER FErT
I I I Y
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkRBAE
Lease liabilities HEAaE 26 703 392
Provisions B 24 - 149
Post-employment benefits & 8 RIKET 28 174 257
Total non-current liabilities FRBEELE 877 798
NET ASSETS EEFE 11,260 10,959
EQUITY s
Share capital A& A 29 20,128 20,128
Reserves {1 (8,868) (9,169)
TOTAL EQUITY ERBE 11,260 10,959
Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2023 and are signed W®W—-—E—-=F =B =+ HKEEE2HtE LHT
on its behalf by: TEEREXRE
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis & & £ LONG Liping B #I
Director &% Director £E%

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



Attributable to owners of the Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meREREBR

Yearended 31 December 202 HZE T - —F+_A=+—HIFE
|

(2021: US$9,169,000).

74

Annual Report 2022

of the Company issued and the aggregate amount of nominal value of share capital
of subsidiaries acquired by the Company through an exchange of shares.

* These reserve amounts comprise the negative consolidated reserves of US$8,868,000

Daohe Global Group Limited

*

ARERAER
Capital Exchange
Share Share Special  redemption Capital ~ fluctuation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve’ reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BRER EXRE
kx  RHEE  BHRE i ELRRE R EiTER Eh
USSO00  USSODD  USS000  USSO0D  USSO00  USSO00  USS00  US§a00
i i Tin iR Tin iR Tin &7
| ! J ] | |
At1 January 2021 A\-E-—-%-F-H 20128 153409 184 48 1,695 3152 (171,69) 6,920
Total comprehensive income EERENAEE
for the year - - - - - (55) 4094 4039
Dissolution of subsidiares BEMELT - - (134 = - = 134 =
Changes in equity for the year EERLGEY - - (134 = = (55) 48 4039
At31 December 2021 and AZEZ-§+Zf=1t-HEk
1 January 2022 “5--#-f-H 20,128 153,409* 50% 48* 1,695* 3,097 (167,468)* 10,959
Total comprehensive income EERENAEER
and changes in equity for the year Ex2Y - - - - - (744) 1,045 301
At 31 December 2022 R-E--%#+-A=t-H 20,128 153,409* 50% 48* 1,695* 2,353 (166,423)* 11,260
' Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of share capital ~ * HRRERERARBEHTRAEEEARGEBIA

THWBEH T ARBZ B RABRAEEAE =5 -

RERESEPERERS
£ 19,169,000 % T) °

1% 8868000K L (ZF=—




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 31 December 202 2 B - —F+-_A=+—BILEE

2022 2021

—E-= —E-—F

Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FER FET

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

RETHREZRERE

Profit before tax: Fr BB ) 1,261 4,225
Adjustments for: IR
Reversal of provisions B ERE 8 (154) =
Bank interest income HRITH BUA 8 (240) (161)
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair XA F(EF AR 2
value through profit or loss TREEATFERSE 8 (32) =
Finance costs s E A 9 104 107
Loss on disposal of property, plantand I E¥ZE - BE K& &R E
equipment pd = 10 1 7
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries RET B AR 2 Wk 10 - 277)
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz BERBETE
equipment 10 360 436
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FTRAEEENE 10 759 613
Impairment of property, plant and W - BERZERE
equipment 20 =
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 499 -
(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for IS 5 BRI (BB m)
trade receivables SR (219) 220
Allowance for inventories GEEE 10 88 =
Operating profit before working capital 218 & & % 8 B 48 & % F
changes 2,447 5,170
Increase in inventories FEHEM (153) (201)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables  EUE 5 BRFUR A, (18 1) 5,015 (4,519)
Decrease in prepayments, depositsand ~ FEfT3IE ~ e R H AL
other receivables JrE W R B R > 1,707 329
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables B ZERCRD), 12N (3,368) 2,359
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, JERTER - BB - EapES
provisions, other payables and RBERAHNEBRECRD)
contract liabilities 0 (725) 1,526
Decrease in post-employment benefits {8 & & K48 Fl 8 4 (20) 1)
Cash generated from operations KEETEFBIRE 4,903 4,643
Tax (paid)/refund (BD),/REIFIE (89) 24
Interest paid for lease liabilities EMEEEENFIE 30(b) (71) (74)
Net cash generated from K EB TSI S5
operating activities 4,743 4,593

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



CONSOUDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
T A Eﬁi/ﬂbi%
Yearended 31 December 202 & E —E - —F+-_A=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E_C_F —FET - —4F
Note US$’000 US$'000
B 5 FER FET

| I | |
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFHHERERE

ACTIVITIES
Bank interest received BUERTT A 240 161
Purchases of property, plant and BEWE BERH

equipment 16 (164) (355)
Increase in bank deposits with initial e Em=EA 2

term of over three months SRITTF FRIE AN (3,724) =
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant & #% f% K&

and equipment Fri8 s - 35
Proceed from disposal of equity HEE Eiﬁﬂa‘ufﬁﬁi\ﬁﬁﬁé

investment designated at fair value E WA Z IRIEREFRSRIE

through other comprehensive income - 77
Net cash used in investing activities WEESFTENIRES F5E (3,648) (82)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METDRERERE

ACTIVITIES
Principal portion of lease payments HENRZEAEH D 30(b) (1,169) (1,015)
New bank borrowings FIBRITHER 446 1,240
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITER (1,115) (1,085)
Bank interest paid ERITH A (28) (28)
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEAAER SR (1,866) (888)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH iﬂﬁ&ﬁﬁ%fﬁlﬁ B

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS W), e (771) 3,623
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, T R oE  FH

net (851) 232
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSAT R—B—HZEH&K

1 JANUARY Re%EER 16,104 12,249
CASHAND CASHEQUIVALENTSAT R+=A=+—-HBZBR&R

31 DECEMBER Re%EER 14,482 16,104
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReERRESFEHEAZ

EQUIVALENTS 2
Bank and cash balances RITRIR S &S 14,482 16,104

Daohe Global Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Daohe Global Group Limited (the “Company’) is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries (together with the
Company are collectively referred to as the "Group”) are
principally engaged in the trading and supply chain management
services, and operation of online social platforms.

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 25 January
2002 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda. The address of its registered
office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda. The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange’) since 10 May 2002.

The directors regard Sino Remittance Holding Limited, which
was incorporated in Seychelles, as the controlling shareholder
of the Company and Daohe Global Investment Holding Limited,
which was incorporated in Seychelles, as the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company as at 31 December 2022.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include all HKFRSs, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA"). These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules’) and with the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group are disclosed below.

These financial statements are presented in United States dollars
("US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

e MR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

RAIER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= H
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31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

(b)

The Group has early adopted Amendments to HKFRS 16,
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (March 2021) for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Business Combination —
Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle

Annual Improvements
Project

The Group did not change its accounting policies or
make retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting
the abovementioned amended standards or annual
improvements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments
to standards and interpretation that have been issued
but are not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1
January 2022. The new standard, amendments to standards
and interpretation include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M ERERMIEE
31 December2022 —E-—F+-A=+—H

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONGKONG 3. BRAFITREEITEEMBREE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued) Al )
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet (b) B EME N REMBFT RLIEET
effective (continued) ERMBEREER &)

. { |
Effective for

accounting
periods beginning
on or after
RT3 B
HUEMAEZ
LEEIES
| |
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Disclosure of Accounting 1 January 2023
Policies
ERGFERE 1R BT ARTEV B REENEBFREE 29 - —T-_=%—A—H
SRR EKE
Amendments to HKAS 8 — Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BRI EAESR BRI R - et hst 2 EE —E_=%—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 12 — Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from 1 January 2023

a Single Transaction

FREGENFNRZEBIXN-ELBE - RXHZEERABMABZEERE —FT_=F—H—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
BREEEAR 1R ZERIA - BES RRAHRIEANE —E_WFE—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 — Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
FREEEAR IR ZERIA-NERENIFRBEIE —E_mE—-A—H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 — Lease Liability in a Sales and Leaseback 1 January 2024
EEVBHRELNE 16K 2ETA-ERERMZEERE —E_PFE—H—H
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by 1 January 2024

the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

FEBRES Q) MBRENZD - BERAHHARBZREFGFNERERZ —F_MFE—-—H—H8

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REBREFTHZSBITRNRIFETE
what the impact of these amendments and new standards BlREREAREERSR I TE-
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So ESAEBESHERARMNZESE
far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely RIARRFEIER T KA @ ¥ 425 B
to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial BHRERBEBRNERNTE -

statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss which has been measured at fair
value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

() the contractual arrangement with the other vote

holders of the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(i) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Daohe Global Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the
fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the
Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus
any remaining goodwill and any accumulated exchange
fluctuation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over
the Group's share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum of the
consideration transferred is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is
attributed to the Group.

ire MRS R

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H
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(b)

mEEXE )
MEBARAEZEGREBEEAKEE R
RSN R = N Rl o I
ERRELEFEEARK-

Sl GNP R RS St 2o
AR () EREQFEM ER
RERZM B A BRE 2 A FEH )
ARREEZMBAREEFENLE
HZMEARERANBRTHAAERER
ERRAEL KB HEMERESRE -

SEARBZHEHNRS EHERE
BRI T HH - RER BRI S L -
BRERXZEREBRBTIAEBEEED
B ERIE R o KT B 2 Rl 8 & &t I
REOHFEEE  UEFREANKEFR
RO BRER—K -

RARBDFHRREKP - R — R E
RERE THE AN RUR BB B 51 AR -
BRIERIRE WD BARFHELE (RETA
WO BAFELENLEAR) -

XX REmE
EBAaMtPWENBARRAKEXR
AR -REBEHEMERLEREK
BRHMAGTEE  MBEITRATA -
PELABERERHIARENRFE
A8 o W MERB R AR E LKA R
ERBMEER BT - WEHHE
RAMAIHREERBEREEAS
NFEFTE -

FrEERERLASBEGENBAR
MARREERABRFFENER
IR REE AEEEGEAHREE
RBERAPREBLMEBRRELRE
MEMZERGEEBEEERRBERE AN
SEZEERBWE -

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combination and goodwill (continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value
is added to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units ("CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group
of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the
lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate
a potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (c

(c)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ontinued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is observable,
either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Foreign currency translation

(1)

(71)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in USS, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. The transaction date is the date
on which the company initially recognises such non-
monetary assets or liabilities. Non-monetary items that
are measured at fair value in foreign currencies are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss
on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or
loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (c
(d) Foreign currency translation (c
(i) - Translation on consolidation

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ontinued)
ontinueaq)

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

-  Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates; and

- Allresulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate at the date of that statement of financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE VS EERMIEE
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 4, FESFHEE®)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual

values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line

basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of 5 years or
the lease terms

3to 5 years

5 years

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that

(f)

use.

(1)

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which,
for the Group are primarily laptops and office furniture.
When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-
value asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise
the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not capitalised
are recognised as an expense on a systematic basis
over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that
rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition,
the lease liability is measured at amortised cost and
interest expense is calculated using the effective
interest method.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease
is capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to
dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it
is located, discounted to their present value, less
any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset
is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(f) Leases (continued)

(1)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included
in the cost of right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for
a lease that is not originally provided for in the lease
contract ("lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments and
lease term using a revised discount rate at the effective
date of the modification. The only exceptions are any
rent concessions which arose as a direct consequence
of the COVID-19 pandemic and which satisfied the
conditions set out in paragraph 468 of HKFRS 16. In
such cases, the Group took advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent concessions
are lease modifications, and recognised the change in
consideration as negative lease payments in profit or
loss in the period in which the event or condition that
triggers the rent concessions occurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (co

(9)

(h)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ntinued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the
asset belongs. Recoverable amount is the higher of value in
use and the fair value less costs of disposal of the individual
asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"), and fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL").

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(h) Financial assets (continued)

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently
in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less allowance for credit losses.

Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one

of the following measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the

effective interest method.

- FVTOCI - recycling, if the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes
in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition in profit or loss of
expected credit losses, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment
is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to

profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (
(h) Financial assets (co

(i)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ontinued)

ontinued)

Debt investments (continued)

- FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the investment

(including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit or
loss as other income.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)]

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on investments in debt instruments that are
measured at amortised cost, trade and other receivables.
The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition of the respective financial instrument. ECL are
based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The expected credit losses on these financial
assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well
as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting date,
including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will
result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (

(j)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ontinued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk on a ﬂnancwal instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date
of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries
in which the Group's debtors operate, obtained from
economic expert reports, financial analysts, governmental
bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations,
as well as consideration of various external sources of
actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group's core operations.

The Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function
of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure
at default. The assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. The Group considers a financial
asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate. In certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in
full before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)]

(k)

U]

(m)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery the contractual cash flows.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability under HKFRSs. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
are set out below.

Bank borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the group’s cash management are also
included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Groups transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e, transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third
parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

Sales of merchandise

Revenue from sale of merchandise is recognised at the
point when the control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised at the point in time
when the control of the underlying goods procured by the
Group are transferred.

Internet value-added services ("IVAS”) revenue

Revenue from IVAS is generated from the Group's online
social platforms. Revenues from IVAS primarily include
revenues from the provision of online entertainment and
social networks services. Revenue is recognised when
persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, service
has been rendered, the price is fixed or determinable and
collection is reasonably assured. Revenue is deferred until
these criteria are met.

The Group operates a virtual currency system, under which,
the users can directly purchase virtual currency on mobile
phone application ("APP”) via online payment systems
provided by third parties including payments using mobile
phones, internet debit/credit cards and other third party
payment systems. The virtual currency can be used to play
online games, purchase virtual items and virtual services on
the APP.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue and other income (continued)
Internet value-added services (IVAS”) revenue (continued)

Upon the sales of the virtual currency, the Group typically
has an implied obligation to provide services to enable
the virtual currency to be consumed in the APP through
online games, the virtual items and virtual services in the
APP. As a result, the proceeds received from sales of the
virtual currency are initially recorded as deferred revenue.
The attributable portion of the deferred revenue relating to
values of the virtual currency consumed is immediately or
ratably recognised as revenue only when the services are
rendered to the respective users.

For the purposes of determining when services have been
provided to the respective users, the Group has determined
that consumable virtual items represent items that are
extinguished after being consumed by the users, upon
which revenue is recognised (as a release from deferred
revenue). The Group has determined that durable virtual
items are distinguished over the time when the durable
virtual items are consumed by the users. Accordingly, the
related revenue is recognised over such consumption
period.

Other services income
Income from rendering of services are recognised at the
point in time when the services are rendered.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Reimbursement income from customers, handling
fee income, inspection and laboratory test income are
recognised when the services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments ("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit
to the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee
are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

(i)  Pension schemes
Defined contribution pension scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees in
Hong Kong who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make contributions
to the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Other employee benefits (continued)

(t)

(1)

Pension schemes (continued)

Defined contribution pension scheme (continued)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China, the Group has joined
defined contribution retirement schemes for the
employees arranged by local government labour and
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”).
The Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement
Schemes at the applicable rates based on the amounts
stipulated by the local government organisations.
Upon retirement, the local government labour and
security authorities are responsible for the payment of
the retirement benefits to the retired employees.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which
operate in other overseas countries are required to
participate in the pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. Contributions are made
based on the requirements of the respective local
municipal government, the contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The Group operates a defined benefit pension
plan, which requires contributions to be made to a
separately administered fund, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the scheme. The cost
of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is
determined separately using the projected unit credit
valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension
plans, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect
of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability) and
the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability),
are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained profits through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(t) Other employee benefits (continued)

(1)

(1)

(ifi)

Pension schemes (continued)
Defined benefit pension scheme (continued)
Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the

earlier of:

- the date of the plan amendment or curtailment;
and

- the date that the Group recognises restructuring-
related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group
recognises the following changes in the net defined
benefit obligation under "General and administrative
expenses”in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss by function:

- service costs comprising current service
costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on
curtailments and non-routine settlements; and

- net interest expense or income

Employee leave entitlements

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual
is made at the end of the reporting period for the
expected future cost of such paid leave earned during
the year by the employees and carried forward.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

When the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the
statement of profit or loss over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

4. FTESHHER®

(u)

(v)

(w)

fEE A
FREEERAIRELHBEMIRESD
FERR

BURS 8 s

fisd A] & B AR E K S AL RS A AT
B R - BIR A T E R
Bh o szt —THRAXIAE A - A
REREMREZKAXHEHRBERR
HRERR U A

WWEES R —EEE  EATEST
NEEWATE - RAEM A E T
AR GES L L e

BiIR
PTiSBite & MR8 KR TR B R AR -

EHRNHBRFARRBENTE -
JERDUSE M B RN B FER RS A
JR A 73 10 B Al 6 2 FE R A 3k AT 0 A% Y
WA ZIAR - A RAKEBARBK
KAAIHIRNIER - AEEEHE N
BIEM B ERANHRE RS HEMA
KERBHOREGTH -

BERERERGSVBERRATEER
BEMREE R B ERB RN K
BHEBANEENZEA T AER BT
HBERE-—MUMBEERRERKEZE
AR WRERD S M A Al B
EREIMHEEREZE  KRPARA
BEIARGAHAERROBERT - #
REEHBEEE - WEREZRREH
BT ER TG ERRTUGE N K
SIENNR S (XBE RN P H
MmEEREBE ATEEIBEHEE
kA& -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to the leasing transaction as a whole.
Temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease payments
for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net
deductible temporary differences.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(w)

(x)

(y)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated
reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow is remote.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
association and bye-laws grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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4,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Events after the reporting period
Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimations,
which are dealt with below).

Accounting for companies governed under contractual
arrangements as subsidiaries

The Group's operation of online social platforms business is
carried out through a domestic company, established under the
laws of the People’s Republic of China (the "PRC”), namely 5 3|
24 R R B 2 G R 2 A (Loovee Science and Technology
Development Co. Ltd.*) ("Loovee Development’). Loovee
Development holds the necessary licenses and approvals to
operate internet-related businesses in the PRC.

The Company does not have any equity interest in Loovee
Development. The directors of the Company assessed whether
or not the Group has control over Loovee Development based
on whether the Group has the power over Loovee Development,
has rights to variable returns from its involvement with Loovee
Development and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over Loovee Development. Nevertheless, the
contractual arrangements may not be as effective as direct legal
ownership in providing the Group with direct control over the
consolidated entities and uncertainties presented by the PRC
legal system could impede the Group's beneficiary rights of the
assets, liabilities and results of operations of the consolidated
entities. The directors of the Company, based on the advice of
its legal counsel, consider that the contractual arrangements
between Loovee Development and their respective equity
shareholders are in compliance with the relevant PRC laws
and regulations and are legally binding and enforceable. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the
Group has control over Loovee Development as a result of the
contractual arrangements as detailed in Note 37 and other
measures. Accordingly, the Group has consolidated the financial
information of Loovee Development and its subsidiaries for the
year in the consolidated financial statements.

*  For identification purpose only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in Note 4(j), ECL are measured as an allowance
equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its
credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition.
HKFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase
in credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased, the Group takes into account qualitative
and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.

Provision for expected crediit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate expected credit
losses for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and expected
credit losses is a significant estimate. The amount of expected
credit losses is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not
be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the expected credit losses on the Group's trade
receivables is disclosed in Note 20 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for inventories

The estimation of provision for inventories involves significant
judgment based on the consideration of key factors such as aging
profile, future sales projection, estimated future selling prices
and selling expenses of the respective inventories. Management
reassesses these estimations of provision for inventories at each
balance sheet date.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-
use assets) at the end of each reporting period. Non-financial
assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment
exists when the carrying value of an asset or a CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and its value in use. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected future
cash flows from the asset or CGU and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details are given in Notes 16 and 17 to the financial
statements.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact on the income tax provisions in the periods in which
such determination is made. The carrying amount of tax payable
as at 31 December 2022 was US$446,000 (2021: US$305,000).
During the year, income tax expense of US$240,000 (2021:
US$139,000) was charged to profit or loss based on the estimated
assessable profit.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

5.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Actuarial assumptions on defined benefit retirement plans
Accounting for defined benefit plans may be complex because
actuarial assumptions are required to measure the obligation and
the expense, with the possibility that actual results differ from
the assumed results. These differences are known as actuarial
gains and losses. Defined benefit obligations are measured
using the Projected Unit Credit Method (“PUCM"), according to
which the Group has to make a reliable estimate of the amount
of benefits earned in return for services rendered in current and
prior periods, using actuarial techniques. In addition, in cases
where defined benefit plans are funded, the Group has to estimate
the fair value of plan assets. As a result, the use of the PUCM
involves a number of actuarial assumptions. These assumptions
include demographic assumptions such as mortality, turnover
and retirement age and financial assumptions such as discount
rates, salary and benefit levels. Such assumptions are subject
to judgements and may develop materially differently than
expected and therefore may result in significant impacts on
defined benefit obligations.

The carrying amount of retirement benefit obligations as at 31
December 2022 was US$45,000 (2021: US$113,000).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's business comprises two reportable operating
segments as follows:

(@) trading and supply chain management services; and
(b)  operation of online social platforms.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/(loss) before tax. The
adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured consistently with
the Group'’s profit before tax except that bank interest income,
interest on bank borrowings, gain on dissolution of subsidiaries as
well as corporate and other unallocated expenses are excluded
from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.

Segment assets do not include corporate and other unallocated
assets. Segment liabilities do not include loan from a shareholder
as well as corporate and other unallocated liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR ISR M EE
31 December2022 — L= =F+=A=+—H
6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. RESBER 1)

I B N B D B
Trading and Operation

supply chain of online
management social
services platforms Total
EZ RitpEdE mE@E
EERRY HEXEAE @t
Note US$’000 US$’000 US$'000
B3 TERn TER TER

Yearended 31 December2022 HE-ZT-—fF
tTZRA=+—-HLEE

Segment revenue: DEWRE:
Revenue from external customers RENRERE 2 M= 7 26,737 25,141 51,878
Segment results DHEEE 3,931 (1,981) 1,950
Bank interest income RITH B MWA 240
Corporate and other unallocated {3 R H A R 5 BL

expenses 53 (901)
Interest on bank borrowings RITERF B (28)
Profit before tax PR AT R 1,261
Income tax FrisHt (240)
Profit for the year FE A 1,021
Other segment information: HittpBE R
Impairment of property, plantand ~ #1% ~ BE K& ERE

equipment - 20 20
Impairment of right-of-use assets FREEERE - 499 499
Fair value gain on financial assetat ~ E R FEF AB=Z 2 ¢

fair value through profit or loss BEZ A TENS (32) - (32)
Depreciation: E:

Property, plant and equipment mE - BER&E 36 324 360

Right-of-use assets EREEE 362 397 759
Capital expenditures BARL 140 24 164
Reversal of allowance for trade RWE SRR EERE

receivables (160) (59) (219)
As at 31 December 2022 R-E=-—F

+=A=+—H

Segment assets NEEE 13,464 12,570 26,034
Corporate and other unallocated R EM KD

assets BE 239
Total assets BEBE 26,273
Segment liabilities STEEE 7,189 3,808 10,997
Loan from a shareholder RE—BBRRERER 3,856
Corporate and other unallocated rEREMRDE

liabilities & 160
Total liabilities BERR 15,013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. RESEER W
I I Y D
Trading and Operation
supply chain of online
management social
services platforms Total
B 5 Rt mERE
B2 R HRFEA @t
Note USS$'000 USS$'000 US$'000
L= FTET FET FET
I I I I D
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE-_ZT_-—F
TZA=T—BLLFE
Segment revenue: AEWER:
Revenue from external customers B INRE P 2 Wi 7 29,648 32,991 62,639
Segment results PEEE 2,783 1,825 4,608
Bank interest income RITFLS WA 161
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries  BF AUHT B A 7] 2 Wz 277
Corporate and other unallocated PEREMEADER
expenses A (793)
Interest on bank borrowings RITERFE (28)
Profit before tax PR 8 A1 7 4,225
Income tax FrigHt (139)
Profit for the year F & A 4,086
Other segment information: HittpEEHR :
Depreciation: wE:
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 25 41 436
Right-of-use assets EREEE 341 272 613
Capital expenditures BEARFEX 29 326 355
Allowance for trade receivables e B 5 BR SR 153 67 220
As at 31 December 2021 RZE=——F
+-A=+—H
Segment assets THEE 13,837 16,744 30,581
Corporate and other unallocated EREMRDE
assets BE 267
Total assets BEERE 30,848
Segment liabilities STEEE 10,878 5,045 15,923
Loan from a shareholder kE—BREER 3,856
Corporate and other unallocated {3 R H R 5 BL
liabilities 8f& 110
Total liabilities BERR 19,889
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R SRR MR

31 December2022 —E - —_F+_-_A=+—H

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ReEWER

Geographical information b 35 & R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) HKEINREFZ Wz

®)

2022 2021
—E-= —EZ—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

5 ! | |
PRC i 27,834 35,466
Southern hemisphere - EK 10,334 12,495
North America b =M 9,569 11,007
Europe BOM 1,907 1,698
Others E 2,234 1,979
51,878 62,639

The revenue information above is based on the locations of EiEE R IRIERFETEES -

the customers.

Non-current assets ) FERBEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
. ! ! | |
PRC e 1,223 1,304
Hong Kong B8 26 141
Others Hith 42 178
1,291 1,623
The non-current assets information above is based on the FHERBEEER NIBREBEEEMT
locations of assets and excludes a financial asset at fair value WEH WA BE—HBHEAFETA
through profit or loss. BRZemEE -

BRIRIREEBFRA A
2111

R
T FF




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE SRR MR
31 December2022 —E-—F+_-fF=+—H

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. ReESWER

Information about major customers ERXEEFZER
Revenue from a major customer, which amounted to 10% or KE—BEERP (AR E K 10%5 A
more of the Group’s revenue, is set out below: B) 2= T

Operating segment 2022 2021

BEDE —E-C —F——
Us$’000 Us$'000
Fxn TXETT

Customer A Trading and supply chain management services 9,937 11,993
BEFA B 5 RHEEEIERRE

7. REVENUE 7. W=
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBEWZR ZDTWT -

2022 2021
—=E=-= T

US$’000 US$'000

FEx FExT

Revenue from contracts with customers — B1 % P B4 A0 25

Sales of merchandise EHmiE 18,813 24,586
Commission income (=R ON 11,751 11,063
IVAS revenue B 48 E AR 5 s 21,287 26,965
Other services income H A AR A W A 27 25

51,878 62,639
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FIE R T L

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

REVENUE (continued) 7. I‘I&ﬁ_ﬁ (&)
Disaggregated revenue information TIFWEER

Trading and
supply chain
management
services

B RAtEE
EERY
US$'000

Segments k|

TR

Operation
of online
social
platforms
rEPE
XA
US$’000
FE5

Total

At
US$000
TER

Year ended 31 December 2022

BE-E-—fF
+tZA=+—-HLEEE

Type of goods or services EYMSREER

Sales of merchandise EmiHE 14,986 3,827 18,813

Commission income WA 11,751 - 11,751

IVAS revenue G B AL E IR e - 21,287 21,287

Other services income Hen R WA - 27 27
26,737 25,141 51,878

Geographical markets ity & T 3%

PRC H 2,693 25,141 27,834

Southern hemisphere R ER 10,334 - 10,334

North America JEEM 9,569 - 9,569

Europe BUM 1,907 - 1,907

Others Hit 2,234 - 2,234
26,737 25,141 51,878

Timing of revenue recognition B EERZERE

Goods transferred/services rendered ata R ERZHEZEY)

point in time AR 26,737 25,141 51,878

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. REVENUE (continued) 7. WE e
Disaggregated revenue information (continued) DB EER (8
¢ | | |
Trading and Operation
supply chain of online
management social
services platforms
B REERE mEPEE
Segments DH EE R HRFEAE
US$'000 US$'000
FTET FTET

Total

a5t
US$/000
TET

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE-Z-_—F
+ZA=t+—HLEE

Type of goods or services ENSRRBEE

Sales of merchandise B e 18,585 6,001 24,586

Commission income [EEON 11,063 = 11,063

IVAS revenue B B 4L B JR 75 Wz = 26,965 26,965

Other services income HanRAB WA = 25 25
29,648 32,991 62,639

Geographical markets B W5

PRC # 2475 32,991 35,466

Southern hemisphere A Bk 12,495 = 12,495

North America b =M 11,001 = 11,001

Europe BUM 1698 = 1698

Others Hitb 1,979 - 1,979
29,648 32,991 62,639

Timing of revenue recognition Rz

Goods transferred/services rendered ata R ERZHEZEY)

point in time R R 29,648 32,991 62,639
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7.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (
Performance obllgatlons

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

continued)

Sales of merchandise

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 90 days from
delivery, except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

Commission income

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
underlying goods procured by the Group and payment is
generally due within 30 to 60 days from the invoice date.

IVAS revenue

The performance obligation is satisfied when persuasive evidence
of an arrangement exists, service has been rendered, the price
is fixed or determinable and collection is reasonably assured.
Revenue is deferred until these criteria are met, details of IVAS
revenue and its recognition is set out in Note 4(r).

Other services income

The performance obligation is satisfied when the services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from
invoice date.

e SRR MR
31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

s 2 ()
BHEE
AEEBRAORENEMURIT

BOECEXNERBET  HRBERR

Hétﬁmi%imU% HHEE—R
W ERKIBRFOE -

L: *N '1%/:/ /?\

BHETERNAEBERE 2 HBEE R
ETT NHBEEBEEZEHBEEI0E60K

MEIH -

J@%’UEEZ—EEAQME#J ERZLHHE - B
REIRY  EECETXAEE - URAS
ERARKEBGRIERETT - Wal TRE &
AERARRERL - BEEEBEEERE
Yo i e L W 57 B 1 A BT R 4()

E TEWA
BHBEEAEERERERET MR Ha %
EHHEARE30RAANEIE -
Tl]iaﬂ\gglﬁ@’/lj

—FFR
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8.

116

OTHER INCOME 8.

An analysis of the Group’s other income is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hbig A
REEZ HPAZ ST :

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
Note USs$’000 US$'000
B 5E FEx FET
I I B I
Bank interest income RITHRE YA 240 161
Reimbursement income from customers 2R B & F Z BT UA 2 3
Handling fee income FEBWA 40 44
Inspecting and laboratory test income mBRkEBREARKA 1 2
Subsidy income from Employment [RF 251 8 AL A
Support Scheme a 130 -
Government subsidies B Bh 820 435
Reversal of provisions BRI 154 =
Fair value gain on financial asset at BAFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEAFEKS 18 32 =
Others HAtb 11 110
1,430 755
Notes: ek -

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised
government grants in respect of COVID-19 of US$130,000 (2021: Nil)
from Employment Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong
Government.

(b)  Government subsidies are mainly related to the subsidies received from
the local government authority for the achievements accomplished by

@ BE-ZS-_-—€+-A=+—RHILEE &&
EREREABUTIREZ [RTEEEI B 2019
TR B R 2 BUF # B1130000% L (ZF = —
FfE) o

() BT EZREN AR EEG 2 ALt
7B R B o

the Group.
FINANCE COSTS 9. BIi&EH
I I I
2022 2021
—E-_-F —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
I I I
Interest on bank borrowings (Note 30(b)) RITERFIE (M 5E300b)) 28 28
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 30(b)) HEBEHNE (MFE300b)) 71 74
Other finance costs: increase in discounted ~ EfbEBA 758 F « BERF R R A M
amounts of provisions arising from the ENeEERR e E
passage of time 5 5
104 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M ERERMIEE
31 December2022 —E-—F+-A=+—H

10. BR% Al Al
AEE 2 BBADEFTYEMER,GEA) AT

10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FIE
I I I I
2022 2021
—E-C-F T %
Note US$’000 US$'000
B & FEr FET
I Y I I
Cost of inventories sold" BEERFE KA 17,523 22313
Cost of services provided? ERERS 2 A 17,253 19,414
Research and development expenditure* TS 1,576 1,580
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment -M¥ - BERRE 16 360 436
~ Right-of-use assets -ERESE 17 759 613
1,119 1,049
Lease payments not included in the FIAHEAER
measurement of lease liabilities AR 17 75 156
Auditor's remuneration ZEEE S - 258 207
Employee benefit expense (including RERAMALZ- (B
(directors' remuneration — Note 11); EEHMKE )
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e A RER 10,200 11,319
Staff welfare and benefits STREMN kB 492 277
Pension scheme contributions” BIRSFTEIHR
- defined contribution scheme - EREH G E 1,507 1,002
- defined benefit plans - EEENEE 28(a) 1 1
12,200 12,599
Foreign exchange differences, net bE L ERFRE 271 (14)
Allowance for inventories FEEE 19 88 =
Fair value gain on financial asset at fair value ~ #Z A F(EFFABZHZ
through profit or loss cREEATERE (32) =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  BEREHEZ
equipment BB 1 7
Gain on dissolution of subsidiaries BB AR 2 s - (277)
i Included in cost of sales in the consolidated statement of profit or oss. 2 FFASEBRRZEEMERNA -

* RARABRERZERERBE ZKAR -

* Included in cost of services provided in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

- The audit fee and related expenses in relation to the Company’s auditor, - REMFWNEPREBBARRGZEKANERSE
RSM Hong Kong of US$221,000 (2021: US$186,000) was included in the SRR ESFT 2 EaT B A R AARIR % 221,000 %
auditor's remuneration. TT(ZZE=—% 11860003 7T) °

. R-TE-_—HF+-_F=+—H AEELES
AERUBGR IR E 5T 8 R AT I S R R FE 1t
R —F:8\) -

At 31 December 2022, the Group had no material forfeited contributions
available to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future
years (2021: Nil).

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1. EEHM
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the NEERE ETRE - A EERFIEE383(1)@)
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Companies b QOROBEARAR (FEEEFFZER)
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information BOE2RETHBE2ESHFHAOT

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FE

I I I
Fees we 262 262

Other emoluments: Eie -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREDH R 798 798
Performance related bonuses (ERARRETEAT 450 625
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFT B 227 140
1,475 1,563
Total et 1,737 1,825
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M ERERMIEE
31 December2022 —E-—F+-A=+—H

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 1. EBFHFMH @
The emoluments of each director are set out below: FREEZMEeHIIOT -

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits  Performance scheme Total
Fees inkind  relatedbonus  contributions  remuneration
e 2 &y B
He  REWIE HERA AR BEH
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

TER FER FER TER FER
I A R S R

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZ-B-CF

+ZB=+-HLEE
Executive Directors: HTES:
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis EEF
(Chief executive officer) (frmas) - 752 450 225 1,427
LONG Liping R - 46 - 2 48
Non-executive Director: FHTEE:
ZHOU Xijian A&k 154 - - - 154
Independent non-executive BYHTES:
Directors:
WANG Arthur Minshiang Tax 46 - - - 46
LAU Shu Yan 21 31 - - - 31
ZHANG Huijun REE 31 - - - 31
262 798 450 227 1,737
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-Z-—F
+ZA=+-HLFE
Executive Directors: HiTES:
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis BEF
(Chief executive officer) (ThEaH) = 752 625 138 1515
LONG Liping BT - 46 o 2 4
Non-executive Director: FHTES:
ZHOU Xijian A% & 154 = = - 154
Independent non-executive BUFHTES:
Directors:
WANG Arthur Minshiang THE 46 - - - 4%
LAU Shu Yan 2B A 31 = = - 31
ZHANG Huijun KEE 31 = = = 31
262 798 625 140 1825

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE IS E R MY
31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

11. DlRECTORS’ REMUNERAT'ON (continued)

There was no arrangement under which any director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2021: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument was
paid to or receivable by any of the directors as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office as a director of any member of the Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the Group (2021:
Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealings entered into by the Company or
subsidiaries undertaking of the Company, where applicable, in
favour of directors (2021: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was a
party and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year included two
(2021: one) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out
in Note 11 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining three (2021: four) highest paid employees who
are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

11.

12.

FA - BELEALEBEEREREXF
EMEEMHFM( T _—F : £) -

RBE-_T__F+_A=+—HILFE "
I 48 A (] & 5 3 A s B A B & 1 7 L A
BN NBEAEER 2 RE) - JEAAEHE
EARBERARZESTHNARASEERE
AR 2 BB E (T - —F
&) -

REBEE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—RHILFEE
KRB ARRWE QG (WEA) HET
VEMUNEEAXmAZER BEEREKE
MRZH(ZE=Z—F : &) -

PASF A B S AR [E RIS - AN B
RAIEASPRAREZEBMARBZE
ENEEZHEBALEEXRAEREETHE
BEARGIHMEARS  RHREH -

FuREHMES
FREUGEFHEEREMU (=T =—
FfDEF HFMABEN EXHE
NeFR - EBp=f(ZF=—F: 0Of)IF
ARAEERTREHZESHFMERZ
RSO

2022 2021
—ZE—- —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx F=T

. £ | |
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZMEREYA T 746 854
Performance related bonus BB EAT 132 168
Pension scheme contributions BINEET B R 5 7
883 1,029
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued) 12. AN EESHMES @®
The number of non-director and non chief executive highest paid FEERFTRAEHE  EaFHEE ST
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands (I8 25| 2 FNBATEHE 2 ASIT

presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HKS$") is as follows:

Number of employees

EEAH™
2022 2021
—EC-CE —E—F
I . I
HK$1,00,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 # 70 & 1,500,000 % 7T
(equivalent to US$128535 to US$192,801) (FEE M 128535 T2 192,801 £ 7T) - -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 70 & 2,000,000 8 7T
(equivalent to US$192,802 to US$257,069) (FBER 192802 TTE 257,069 % 7T ) 1 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 78 7T
(equivalent to US$257,070 to US$385,604) (FBZEM 257,070 T £ 385,604 5% 7T) 2 1
3 4
During the year ended 31 December 2022, no emolument was RBEZZE-__F+=-A=+—HILLFE "
paid to or received by any of the five highest paid employees PR R A &= 5 MiES B’
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or SRR EMMSEAMBIRNMNBELREH
as compensation for loss of office in connection with the W 828 SMERBEARNEE B EREA
management of the affairs of the Group (2021: Nil). ZEBHECE—F:®) -
INCOME TAX 13. B
Income tax has been recognised in profit or loss as following: REEERZAEHEINAT

2022 2021
—E-F —E—F
US$’000 USS$'000
FErx FET
I . Y
Current BN HEA
— Provision for the year - REERE 256 174
— Net overprovision in prior years - BT FERERETE (16) (35)
Total tax expense for the year FEBBERZEE 240 139

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE IS E R MY
31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

13. INCOME TAX (continued)

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the first HK$2 million of
assessable profits of the qualifying group entity established in
Hong Kong are taxed at 8.25%, and profits above that amount are
subject to the tax rate of 16.5%. The profits of the group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profit tax rate regime continue
to be taxed at a rate of 16.5%.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax
expense at the effective tax rates are as follows:

13. FTEH )
REMAHFEREE  REBKINEGE
%52 B E B8 A B 2,000,0007% 7T E R B B 4%
825% M B RERFH - BB Z 8 2% 7 Al
1216.5% H) Bt R BT o N1 A FI1S 5 /AL
ZEBBERAEFIEER165% 0T REH -

H A 375 8 R B I 2 BB TR R S )
BEREBROBAAD  RERIEPIRR
AT -

RN R R E K% BB R B P A
AR TE KRG B Z BR B A A1) 2 B IR
XERERBEAE Z HIARM 2 SR T -

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
US$’000 USS$'000
FER FET
I . I
Profit before tax B 56 AT g 7 1,261 4225
Tax at the statutory tax rates of 16.5% HEAERE165%TE 2 FiE
(2021: 16.5%) ZEZ—F :165%) 208 697
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MEBARTRABE 228 (72) 200
Income not subject to tax BARBIA (79) (©64)
Expenses not deductible for tax B E kb 340 123
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised in A BT HBRER
previous periods WIEEE (233) 212)
Tax losses not recognised RER 2 TRIBEBE 636 59
Tax concession HBEER (407) (437)
Net overprovision in prior years BEFEBREREFTE (16) (35)
Others Hh (137) (198)
Tax expense for the year FEHBERE 240 139

At 31 December 2022, the Group had accumulated tax losses

arising in the PRC of US$5,866,000 (equivalent to Renminbi
("RMB") 40,855,000) (2021: US$4,373,000 (equivalent to
RMB27,880,000)) for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. These tax losses will expire
from 2023 to 2033.

Daohe Global Group Limited
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14.

15.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX (continued)
At 31 December 2022, the Group has estimated accumulated

tax losses of US$9,634,000 (equivalent to HK$74,953,000) (2021:
US$10,527,000 (equivalent to HK$81,900,000)) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profit of the companies in which the losses arose. The
tax losses had not been confirmed by the Inland Revenue
Department in Hong Kong.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of
these losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
and number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The Group had no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue for
the year.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is
based on the following:

13.

14.

15.

ARE B TS ERER MR
31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

FR& B ()

R-BE-_—_F+-_A=+—8 ' KEER
B &8 2 ar 25 IEE 18 5 9,634,000%
7T (FBZE 749530008 7T) (Z B = —F:
10,527,000 3 7T (B 72 81,900,000 7T)) » A]
HERBKEEEERAEENARZARR
JERBLR A o BB B M R ERUL B

8-

P A B A TEDRI R 28 A SO - AN SR B 3 R Bh
ZEBRERELENAEE °

R E
EETERMEE_S-_—_F+=-_A=1+—
BIEFEERNABRE (ZTE-—F &) -
BRER

BREABMNESBEIRBEARAEAR AR
EFERESEMNMFRCHTERREBEAE -

FA-AKELEERITAETEN LB -

BREAREERN 2R IIER THIEE

2022 2021
—s=-= —T-—F
I . I
Profit =
Profit attributable to owners of RAFIHE ANEG
the Company (US$'000) w=H(F3E7T) 1,021 4,086
Number of ordinary shares ZERHA
Number of ordinary shares in issue FABETEBEREE
during the year (000) (F i) 1,509,593 1,509,593

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR
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31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—H

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% - HERRE

Leasehold Furniture and Motor
improvements  equipment vehicles Total
HEMEEE BARRE AE st
US$000 US$'000 US$’000 US$'000

TER TER TER TER
1 S S S S R

Cost B
At 1 January 2021 RZE-Z—4$—H—-H 860 2924 431 4215
Additions NE 261 94 - 355
Disposals HE - (335) (54) (389)
Exchange realignment [R?ﬂ% 7 18 2 27
At 31 December 2021 R_E_—4+-RA=+—H 1,128 2,701 379 4,208
Additions NE 87 77 - 164
Disposals HE (54) (20) - (74)
Exchange realignment EEEE (42) (129) (4) (175)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-__§+_A=+—H 1,119 2,629 375 4,123
Accumulated depreciation and 2 HERAE

impairment
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—%5—-Hf—H 802 2,349 393 3,544
Charge for the year FERG 177 247 12 436
Disposals HE - (310) (37) (347)
Exchange realignment ERTIEE 5 7 1 13
At 31 December 2021 RZZ_-F+_A=+—H 984 2,293 369 3,646
Charge for the year FEEE 138 220 2 360
Disposals T (54) (19) - (73)
Impairment ERED - 20 - 20
Exchange realignment P R (31) (100) 4) (135)
At 31 December 2022 R-_F__F+_A=+—H 1,037 2,414 367 3,818
Carrying amount FREE

At 31 December 2022

R-E-_—%+-A=+—H

215 8 305

At 31 December 2021

W-F-_—%+-A=t—H

408 10 562

At 31 December 2022, the Group's management considered that
certain property, plant and equipment of the Group were subject
to impairment losses because the CGUs of these property,
plant and equipment were non-performing and suffered
from substantial losses. Impairment losses of US$20,000 were
recognised to write down the carrying amounts of these items
of property, plant and equipment to their recoverable amount
of nil as at 31 December 2022. The recoverable amounts of the

R_FE-_—_F+-_A=+—H &%
EEEERAAKENETYE W
B REHEFERERE RAAEZSwE
BMELREENRESELEBEMHRRET
£ WESZEKEIE - B EEIE 20000
ETER-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—8
R ABZEWE  BEMEKHEE
MEREENRZE KB ESEAT - -

items of property, plant and equipment were determined based WEREEEBHAWE 2 EDRE
on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections based FEREBENEEETE %itERZETD

on financial budgets covering the remaining useful lives of the
respective items of property, plant and equipment. There were a
number of assumptions and estimates involved in the preparation
of cash flow projections for the period covered. Key assumptions

RAENBREZEDE BELERE
XIEETIJﬁ%—JﬁﬁHEIZEﬁM%%E 5 KR
%/)Ibi?ﬁ E'J ZJHEH%FFF/IZI F‘EJZEE%
mETE) EIJ/%/F&yIETE““&Equ TE
BREFEARRERRERBER

included the expected growth in revenue and gross margins
based on past performance and management’s expectations of
the market development and selection of discount rate. The pre-
tax discount rate applied to the cash flow projection was 18%.

RZEMEUREEERAT SRR
FEHURMIREZERE - B RER
BIAT AL ATRLEIR & 518% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FREEE
! | | | |
Other
Property equipment Total
Y ES Heihsg et

Uss$’000 Us$’000 Us$’000

Fxn Fxn Fxx
' Y I R

At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—4F—H—H 879 3 882
Additions NE 512 - 512
Depreciation e (610) ©) 613)
Termination Bk (14) = (14)
Exchange realignment bE 5 B 12 = 12
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-_—f+-A=t+—H

1 January 2022 M_T__F—H—H 779 - 779
Additions NE 1,308 - 1,308
Depreciation e (759) - (759)
Impairment RIE (499) - (499)
Exchange realignment ME H 38 B (64) - (64)
At 31 December 2022 R_T__F+_F=+—H 765 - 765
At 31 December 2022, the Group’s management considered RZFZZF+ZA=1+—H FEEERE
that certain right-of-use assets of the Group were subject to ERAEAEENE TERAEEEFTRERS
impairment losses because the CGUs of these right-of-use assets B ARzSERAREENReELEMNX
were non-performing and suffered from substantial losses. WAE - WEXEKEE - BIEEE 499,000
Impairment losses of US$499,000 were recognised to write down ETERZZTF+A=+—H®ER
the carrying amounts of these items of right-of-use assets to Nz EERAEEEBEENEREAEKNLE
their recoverable amount of nil as at 31 December 2022. The ARESERE - FAZEEEIEEBHRIE
recoverable amounts of the items of right-of-use assets were SHORBEREBEAEEETE  &A8H
determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow EDNRAERREFERAREEESIEB R
projections based on financial budgets covering the remaining AFRFRVBEENRSREEN - HER
useful lives of the respective items of right-of-use assets. There FrREiicRe R BN RLZHEBHR
were a number of assumptions and estimates involved in the Fftet e TEBRBPIEBRBREERRER
preparation of cash flow projections for the period covered. BAERBRZEMNEUARERERTISER
Key assumptions included the expected growth in revenue and ZTEHAARBEIR KR 78 E - HemERBIPT
gross margins based on past performance and management’s AT ATREIR K /518% °

expectations of the market development and selection of
discount rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projection was 18%.

TﬂiafffﬁlﬁBEA A
—FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

17.

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued) 17. EREEE )
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are as TREINEZSHRABENEZ S8 -
follows:

2022 2021
—EB-—F —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FE
I . I
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 71 74
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREEENESLD 759 613
Expense relating to short-term leases EHEEHEE 2R 75 156
Impairment of right-of-use assets EAEEERE 499 =
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBRER 245 1,404 843
The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in Note 30(c) to the FAAENREREABERNTBHREM T
financial statements. 30() T ©
FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. RAFEFABRZEMEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
I . I
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
US$’000 USS$'000
FEn FET
I I I
Club membership, at fair value emesE (RAFE) 167 135
The fair value of the club membership is determined with EMEE s A ATELRBHEBER 2T AKX
reference to recent transaction prices from the relevant club. REBMETE °

2022 2021
—Eg-= T —F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FExT

I . Y
At 1 January n—H—H 135 135
Fair value gain NEERE 32 =
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—A” 167 135
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20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

19. INVENTORIES 19. #&
I . Y
2022 2021
—EB-C—H —E-—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FExR FET
I . Y
Finished goods BUAK S 925 772
Allowance for inventories FERE (88) -
837 772
TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. BN E Z R
I . Y
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
Us$’000 US$'000
FER FET
I . I
Trade receivables FEUE BRI 3,870 9,181
Allowance for doubtful debts REREE (660) (1,175)
3,210 8,006
The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on AEEEREPZESEREZUEEAR
credit, except for new customers, where payment in advance is ET MR, —REWEREMNHRIE - E
normally required. The credit period is generally 30 to 90 days. BEH—RAINEVR -BEEFHEES
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to ZEREE - REBF N WA KD 2 UK
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables and has TEMEFERRIES - WRABEEEEI - I
a credit control department to minimise credit risk. Overdue EZEREEERR SRETEETHRNE
balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. The BRI 2 685 - AEE W Ep HEWE J R
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements REE R AT ER R E Mk E iR (E
over its trade receivables balances. Trade receivables are non- B - BB SRR T FE - BUE
interest-bearing. The carrying amount of the trade receivables SFER EEREHEEATERE -

approximates to its fair value.

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



ARE IS E R MY
31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

invoice date, is as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. EWRE 5 BRFX (@)

R|ERR - BRE SRR REAER
BEAHZREDTAOT

2022 2021
—E—-C —_F-—
US$°000 US$'000
FTER FET
] ! ] |
Within 30 days 30 R 1,865 4,050
31 to 60 days 31E60K 796 1,615
61 to 90 days 61ZE 90K 148 1,176
91 to 365 days 91 E 365K 488 1,384
Over 1 year il —F 573 956
3,870 9,181

The gross carrying amounts of trade receivables are denominated

in the following currencies:

FEWE SRR 2 RE A ETIE TS G 5HE -

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FE

I e e I
usb E 2,537 6,185
RMB AR 616 2,035
Others Hfb 717 961
3,870 9,181
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
The movements in the loss allowance for doubtful debts are as
follows:

fre WIS ERR Mt

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

20. B E 5 R (@)

REZEBERBREESHNOT

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
USs$’000 US$'000
FEx FET

. | ] |
1 January n—H—H 1,175 1,012

(Reversal of allowance)/loss allowance B R (B ERER),/

recognised I8 B (219) 220
Amount written off as uncollectible WsE AR UL E 2 SRIE (243) (45)
Exchange differences bE 5 S (53) (12)
At 31 December ®n+=—A=+—H 660 1,175

A loss allowance for doubtful debts analysis is performed
at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written
off if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

RERESEREAREERERRREEE
BETON U EEHREEER - BEX
DERAFRUBERANZETE, S
%ﬁ%'JE’\JﬁHﬁEI%U*XE ZaT RS A N
BER BEERERRNREARAENEH
i@&%g & B AR 0 e AR B 4 78 A O TR DRI Y
EERAIEER - —RiE - BWE SRR
MEHRER - FRBAZRREHNITE
AT LAMEE -

*DiafiﬁlﬁBEA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 20. BWE Z BRI
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on VAT &5 51) 75 8 (5 PR 3% 4 P B 9 AN £ [ B LR
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: Z9EREERBHER

Pastdue
B
Less than 3to6 6to12 Over 12
Current 3 months months months months Total

M PR3EA 3Z6fHA 6Z1218F BB12A @t
I e I S S B S B

As at 31 December 2022 RZB--§+-A=1-H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 0.5% 4.2% 12.3% 66.7%  100.0% 17.1%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) FEBE(TEL) 2,120 992 162 27 569 3,870
Expected credit losses (US$'000) BEEEBR(TET) 1 Iy} 20 18 569 660
As at 31 December 2021 RZEZ—F+ZA=1+—H
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERX 1.7% 4.2% 64% 51.7% 100.0% 128%
Gross carrying amount (US$'000) EEAE(TET) 5272 2752 156 89 912 9,181
Expected credit losses (US$'000) BHEEHE(TEL) 92 115 10 46 912 1175
21. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. ARRE - RERHEMEWRRE
RECEIVABLES
I . Y
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—%F
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
I . I
Prepayments TR IR 538 1,606
Deposits e 411 407
Other receivables o e W kIR 1,834 2477
2,783 4,490
Non-current: deposits ERE : RE (221) (282)
2,562 4,208
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to FTA Lt 4ieR 2 & BhE B BT BB R0 R0 8%
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. ZERFIERR FEHEEBEDSELRE
The expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss B E S BRLSRABEEEME - BB
rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of the EEREERERELDARARBRIERRR
Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions KRB FRIEA - AREREMF T ==
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. No F+_A=+—HWBEHEEBBETEKX
loss allowance was provided because management estimated B ST IR AR R o
that the expected credit losses as at 31 December 2022 were not
significant.
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23.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. RERAEEEHEHE

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of the MRZBZZF+ZA=+—H  XEEHUA
Group denominated in RMB amounted to US$10,044,000 (2021: R¥ 5|8 2 $R17 R IR & 4 88 /310,044,000 %
US$11,737,000) is not freely convertible into other currencies. T (ZEZ—4F :11,737000% 7T) * NAI B
However, under the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations R AHMER - Al - RIERE 2 IME
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign ERGOIREE SEERNEFTERE &~
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB SERBREREETINE LIRER 2R
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign THRARBHBBEME -

exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank RITFEFIREBRITERNEFE ZZ T
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying KB - RHESMTEARZERAR—KE=
periods of between one day and three months depending on the BATE SIAEBZARRESHFEME
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at RERBATERTFRZFEGTE  RITHERTY
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances TR I EEENRSE B EBRFHRIT
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of

default.

TRADE PAYABLES 23. ENE SR

The ageing analysis of trade payables as at the end of the RBEAR BNESRFIREZEH R
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: BN :

2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Us$’000 USS$'000
FER FET
| | | |
Within 30 days 30 KA A 785 2,590
31 to 60 days EETIES 17 460
61 to 90 days 61 290K - 682
91 to 365 days 91 £365K 19 455
Over 1 year Bl —F 64 66
885 4,253
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally ZERNE SRR TEE - L—RIE30
settled on 30 to 60 day terms. FOOKRHRIBE -
The carrying amounts of trade payables are denominated in the ENEZERZREBENIZRTIEBE -

following currencies:

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FE

e e e I
usD ETT 509 3,024
RMB AR 376 1,229
885 4253

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR ISR M

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

24. ACCRUALS, PROVISIONS AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. FE:TE A - R{ERHEMENIE

2022 2021
=== T —F
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
I . I
Accrued expenses and provisions EEE R REE 3,230 3,649
Other payables H fth f& T 5RI8 3,228 4,010
6,458 7,659
Non-current: provision IEME) : HiE - (149)
6,458 7,510
The other payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally EMEARIBEBDTETE  —RERH A0
settled on 30 to 60 day terms. 260H -
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. B EE
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: EHBEZFBOT

13

2022 2021
- —E-—F
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
I . I
Deferred revenue iR IE W A 1,339 966
Consideration received from customers EREFPRE
in advance 39 85
1,378 1,051
Contract liabilities include the sales proceeds received from ERBEREBERFPWEE @A EAE %
customers in connection with the unconsumed virtual currency BEMERAFERAUFRERRBEAZHEENS
or unconsumed durable virtual items as deferred revenue FIE - EREERERARNEmMAE P
and short-term advances received from customers to deliver WA G BRZA SR - WIB B —F R AU
merchandises, and are expected to be recognised as revenue moRZEZZFF+ZA=F+—HZEHNE
within one year. The increase in contract liabilities as at 31 BEMOFEARAEFHE S RIAL
December 2022 was mainly due to increase in sales proceeds INFrEL

from customers.
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Annual Report 2022




25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued) 25. §HEEW
The amounts of revenue recognised in the current reporting AR EHEEERR RSBV AENEE
period that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of ZWEeH

the reporting period:

2022 2021
—E2-= T
US$’000 USS$'000
FEx FET
| | ] |
IVAS revenue B B A8 18 (8 AR 7S W 966 622
Sales of merchandise e 85 85
1,051 707
LEASE LIABILITIES 2. HEBE
| | | ] |
Minimum Present value of
lease payment minimum lease payment
BEEESAR BEEEANRE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-_-f —ET-—-F CZB-ZE <-—T-_—F
US$000 US§'000 Uss$’000 US§'000

Within one year —ER 737 989 697 955
More than one year, but not exceeding —F EBERRBME

two years 490 3% 469 390
More than two years, but not more than MM LENBBAF

five years 240 2 234 2
Total lease payment HERRESR 1,467 1387 1,400 1347
Less: Future finance charges W ARBMEER (67) (40) NATER  NATER
Present value of lease obligations HERARE 1,400 1347 1,400 1347
Less: Amount due for settlement within -~ 38 : 7 1218 A WEIERE R 2

12 months IE (697) (955)
Amount due for settlement after 1218 B BB 2 508

12 months 703 392
The incremental borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities range HEBBEAZEEEENEN F25%%
from 2.5% to 10.8% (2021: from 2.5% to 10.8%). 108% (ZFEZ—F : N F25%FE108%) °

ERIRKEBBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4= A

W

BRI

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

27. BANK BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2022, the bank borrowing, granted to a

subsidiary is denominated in RMB, guaranteed by a director of the
subsidiary and his spouse, interest bearing at 3.85% per annum,
repayable by instalment in 12 months and to be matured in 2023.

28.

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings, granted to a

subsidiary were denominated in RMB, guaranteed by a director
of the subsidiary and his spouse, interest bearing at 4.1% per
annum, were repaid by instalments in 12 months and matured in

2022.

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

27. SRITER

RZZE-_—F+=-—A=+—H &F—[HkK
BRARZHRITERUNAREHE  BHBA
A REERERBER  TFHXE38%
FARNREARSHESZ  THER_T==
FERIHE -

R-B-_—F+-_A=+—H EF—HN
BRRZBITERAARKE  aABA
A—REERAERBER  FAHER41%K%
ERNREAASHEERE YR T
F2IH -

28. BEERKEF

2022 2021
—E=-= T4
Note Us$’000 Us$'000
M3 FEx FET
1 ! ] |
Defined benefit plan TE BB 4B FFT &I @) 45 113
Other long term post-employment — E i & Hi (& 8 iR /K18 7
benefits (b) 129 144
174 257
Notes: Bi5E -
(a) Defined benefit plan (a) TEEFAEE

The Group operates an unfunded defined benefit plan for all its
qualifying employees in Taiwan. Under the plan, the employees are
entitled to retirement benefits at 3% of their final salary on attainment
of a retirement age of 55.

According to the laws and regulations in Taiwan, the Group is obliged to
pay its employees in Taiwan, upon retirement, disability or death, post-
employment benefits based on the number of years of services and
final average salary. The Group carried out an actuarial valuation as at 31
December 2022 of its obligation for post-employment benefits payable
to its employees in Taiwan.

The trustees review the level of funding in the plan by the end of each
reporting period. Such a review includes the asset-liability matching
strategy and investment risk management policy. This includes
employing the use of annualities and longevity swaps to manage the
risks. The trustees decide the contribution based on the results of the
annual review.

The plan is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in the life
expectancy for pensioners and equity market risk.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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AEESRNENETET RBEEMAE:

REARZ AR ERREHZABZERKTF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

28. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 28. EERAER &)
Notes: (continued) MisE : (&)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) EHEEAE(E
The most recent actuarial valuations of the present value of the defined ETHERMNEARABEZROHABEHEREGE
benefit obligations were carried out at 31 December 2022 by Hsiu Lin BIEEMAFBREEMR _T-__F+=A1
Consulting Actuary, a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit =T BEREANEMEEREMERET -

actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the reporting RBEHRRAZETEBERRET ¢
period were as follows:

2022 2021
—E-= —ET-—%F
% %

Discount rate RLIR 1.6 06
Expected rate of salary increase EFeERR 1.5 10
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at the RBEMRZEABRETEHRESNE5M0

-

end of the reporting period is shown below:

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
net defined net defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
EREEF EREEF
EEFR EEFR
MEEm i CRd) FMEHD> i CHd)
% US$’000 % US$’000
FER FER
] | | |
2022 —Eg=-=
Discount rate 8538 & 0.5 (8) 0.5 9
Future salary increase ARFRGRE 0.5 9 0.5 (8)
2021 —E-—fF
Discount rate BRIR & 0.5 ) 05 16
Future salary increase ARFRIGRE 0.5 16 05 an
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a method S ERE S IRE NSRS R T BERH
that extrapolates the impact on net defined benefit obligations as a EAXv ARt TBENEL s ry
result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of By HRTMEE -

the reporting period.

ERIRKEBBRAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

28. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 28. EERAER &)
Notes: (continued) MizE : (5&)
(a) Defined benefit plan (continued) (a) TEHEBRGEE)
The total expenses recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or ZA BN R A BRAERZTEIBREENT

loss in respect of the plan are as follows:

2022 2021
—E-F —T-_—%F
US$’000 USs$'000
FER FET

Current service cost I R A - -
Net interest e FHE 1 1
Net benefit expenses recognised in generaland R —MRITHFAX R 2

administrative expenses BB R 1 1
The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair value of FRENEERGEEEZ ATFEZSHNAT :

plan assets are as follows:

4 ! I | ] ] | |
Remeasurement gains/(losses) in

Pension cost charged to profit orloss other comprehensiveincome
HEENREKERE RERIENAERHENE/ (5B)
Returnon
planasset Actuarial
(excluding changes Sub-total
Sub-total amount arising from included
included indudingin -~ changesin inother
At Net inprofit Benefit  netinterest financial ~ Experience  comprehensive  Contribution Exchange At
1January interest orloss paid expenses)  assumptions  adjustments income ~ byemployer realignment 31 December
iTHEEL
BR(FEfE  HEER
iABE MIEEX  2BEE TARRRE i

R-A-8 HEER 0t BHER BEZRE)  RER® EBER WA2Mb B EXBE f2Rct-8

Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Uss'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000 Us§'000

e e e e eI e Tin Tin i1 Tin Tin
! 1 ! ! ! ' 1 ] | |

Yearended31 HEoEoCF
December 2022 +2R=1-R
g

Defned beneft TERAER

obligations 197 1 1 - - (10) 6) (16) - (18) 164
Fivaleofpnasets HEEEZATE (84 - - - (8) - - (8) (3) 8 (19)
Benefttlty BhlaE 113 1 1 - 1] (10) (] (24 (3) (10) 5
Yearended e

3December 2l tZA=T-A

5§

Defined benefi TERAER

obligations B4 1 1 €1 - ® 3 o) - 4 197
Fivaleofpnasets  #HEEEZATE i) - - 3 - - 0 B ®) U &
Benefttlty BlaE 143 I I - - B - ] ) 1 I
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(a)

(b)

Defined benefit plan (continued)

The defined benefit contributions in Taiwan are made to a fund
administered by the government of Taiwan. The major categories of
plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of the total plan assets of
the centrally administered fund are as follows:

28. EEER

ARE B TS ERER MR
31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

BIKE R )

BaE ()

(a)

E%E?E*U*I‘;J(%)

REBZEBBANER DA -—EHEERFE
BESEL FREETIBRERGEZTRE
BESZFAENEEREATEZBSLLAOT

2022 2021
—E-CHE —T-—%F
% %

Equity instruments RARTA
Debt instruments BEETA
Deposits TR

Delegated management BEERE

24 21
11 11
16 18
49 50

The Group expects to contribute US$6,000 to its defined benefit plan in
2023.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end of
the reporting period was 12.5 years (2021: 13.5 years).

Other long term post-employment benefits

The balance represents provision for long service payment as required
by certain jurisdictions. Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits.

29. SHARE CAPITAL

(b)

REBBEHER T -_=F 2 CEEATEHR
56,0003%TT °

RREBR - TERAEEFH A 256 (=
T4 1 135%) o

HihREEERIKER

HEHRIEE TR AREMER RERBE S B -
RIEEFREEEESRAB A - k2%
MEREBARRZERIMELEZERAT
AT e

29, IR

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
US$’000 Us$'000
FER FEx

Authorised:
3,000,000,000 (2021: 3,000,000,000)

A

ordinary shares of one and

3,000,000000 % (ZZF =—
3,000,000,000 %) =R B

£

one third US cents —X=nz—F
(2021: one and one third US cents) (ZBE=Z—%F:—X=%»
each <2 —E) 2 E@k 40,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: BREITRME
1,509,592,701 (2021: 1,509,592,701) 1,509,592,701 iR (Z T = —% :
ordinary shares of one and 1,509,592,701 f%) B E &
one third US cents —’\Z—%ﬂﬂ
(2021: one and one third US cents) (ZB=Z—F:—X=H
each 2 —F) 2 EER 20,128 20,128
ERRREE AN AT

ZFFR



ARE IS E R MY
31 December2022 —E-_—_F+_-_HA=+—H

30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions
Additions to right-of-use assets during the year of
US$1,308,000 (2021: US$512,000) were financed by leases
liabilities.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. MEBRERERME

(a) EXFHERS
FRANEFAEEE308000F 7T (=
T - —4F :512000E7T) ATHEBER
>§ °

(b) BMEEFHEFNAEEH

activities

Loan
Bank Lease froma
borrowings liabilities shareholder
RE—F
RITHER HEAE BREEX
US$'000 US$/000 US$'000
FEx FEx FErx
I I I Y
At 1 January 2021 R-—ZE-——F—H—8 981 1,852 3,856
Cash flows from/(used in) B E ZENFTE,(FTHE)
financing activities RERE 127 (1,015) =
New leases FAE = 512 =
Interest expense F BRI 28 74 =
Interest paid classified as DERECERERERN
operating cash flows [=ENEES) = (74) -
Termination of lease BIFHEE = (14) =
Exchange realignment b 5 A 25 12 =
At 31 December2021and RZZE=——F+=A
1 January 2022 =+—HkK
—E=-%—H—H 1,161 1,347 3,856
Cash flows used in BEESMAER SRS
financing activities (697) (1,169) -
New leases FHE - 1,308 -
Interest expense F B X 28 71 -
Interest paid classified as DERKEERSREN
operating cash flows EARFHE - (71) -
Exchange realignment ME W S (76) (86) -
At 31 December 2022 RZTE__F+_A
=+—H 416 1,400 3,856

1 38 Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c)

Total cash outflow for leases

fre WIS ERR Mt

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

30. e RERERMT @)

*H. % EE % AL H:II e

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement FFARERER Z fﬂ ERSRERHE
of cash flow are as follows: [N
I I I
2022 2021
—E-= —EZ—F
US$’000 Us$'000
FEx FET
I I I
Within operating activities KRB E E N 146 230
Within financing activities BEESNEEN 1,169 1,015
Represented by lease rental paid RESHHEHERES 1,315 1,245

31. COMMITMENTS

The Group had no capital commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment at the end of the year.

32.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statement, the Group had the following significant transactions
with related parties during the year:

(a)

(b)

Loan from a shareholder

At 31 December 2022, the loan from a shareholder of the
Company is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable
by 22 May 2023. The repayment date of the loan was
extended to 22 May 2024 subsequent to the year end.

At 31 December 2021, the loan from a shareholder of the
Company is unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable
by 22 May 2022. The repayment date of the loan was
extended to 22 May 2023 before due date.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

(b) XEBEFEE

L RPE
AEERFRFEEBBENR BB NEE
ZEARAYE -

32. EEBALRS
MRIR A ISR EM I D AT RIS - ZJK%@
RERNEERBBATETUTEAR

(a) RE—BRRERXK

RZEZZF+=-HA=+—H KB
RAE—ZBREERASEERE T
MERER-_E-_=FFEA-+=H
AIEE NE/RE BRZENRBH
Bz —_ZET_WMFRAA-_+_-H-

R_ZE-_—F+_A=+—HB X8
ARAB—BBRRERREEM - A&
MERER-_T-__FHAA-+_-H
RIEE - RBIB B AT B2 ERBH
BEE_ZE_=FRAHA-_+t=H-

BABZHMN

2022 2021
—E-= —E—%F
USs$’000 USS$'000
FER FET

I I I
Short term employee benefits HHEERT 1,248 1,423
Post-employment benefits 18 BiRIRIE R 227 140

Total compensation paid to key INTEEBEABZ
management personnel g 1,475 1,563
Df&ﬂig .ﬁBEA A

ZFFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= A\
N

e
31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of Groups
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

33. &M T EHER

AEBEEER SR TARRE R ZKE

BT -

Financial assets at

Financial asset at
fair value through

amortised cost profit or loss Total
REHRATEZ BRATEFA
SREE BRZEREE @t
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
- _—E--% CZB-Zf _-T--% ZBIZf _—T-—%
Note US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US§'000
i TR TEx TR T Tin T
I I I I I I I D
Financial asset atfairvalue  RATEFABEZ
through profit or loss EHAE 18 - - 167 135 167 135
Trade receivables EUBAER 2 3,210 8006 - - 3,210 8006
Financial assets includedin 3 ATBHZE - k2 R
prepayments, deposits EfpliEe
and other receivables AR 2 2,245 2884 - - 2,245 2,884
Bank deposits with MiERE0=fA
initial term of over R/
three months 3,724 - - - 3,724 -
Cashand cash equivalents  ReRBE2ZEER b)) 14,482 16,104 - = 14,482 16,104
23,661 26,994 167 135 23,828 27129
Financial liabilities cHEas

1 ! ] |
Financial liabilities

ol =R
2022 2021
—E-= T —F
Note Uss$’000 US$'000
B 5E FEx SEEE
| | | | |
At amortised cost: REEK AR E
Trade payables FER B ZERRK 23 885 4253
Loan from a shareholder KE—BREER 32(a) 3,856 3,856
Accruals, provisions and other FERTER - BHEREM
payables FERT IR 24 6,458 7,659
Bank borrowings RITER 27 416 1,161
11,615 16,929
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 1,400 1,347
13,015 18,276
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34. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of bank deposits
with initial term of over three months, cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, trade payables, a loan from a
shareholder, accruals, provisions and other payables, and bank
borrowings approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the financial asset at fair value through profit or
loss is determined with reference to recent transaction prices.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

34.

e SRR MR
31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

AFEMNE
BERECHENRERPB=[EA ZRT
2N ﬁi&ﬁ%#@ﬁa - RUE 5B
AFATENRIA - BE REMBEKRFIRZ &8l
BE- %H%%%m RE—BBERER
FEEtER - BE KA FRN RRITHE
Rz A FEEEEEERS  T2HENES
TAZEESRRE -

BAVEFABSEZEREEZAFET
REZTHAKRBERERE °

TREJAEBERT A AP EFEER:

Fair value measurement using

RANTERETATETE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIER™ S EATEE EBEAFRTHE
ZHRE WAE BWAE
(5—18) (B=8) (B5=8) st
US$’000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
T TExn TER TER
I Y I I D
As at 31 December 2022 R-BZ-ZF
+=ZH=+—H
Financial asset at fair value through IR AFEFT A 1B
profit or loss LERMEE - 167 - 167
As at 31 December 2021 RZTEZ—F
+=—A=+—8H
Financial asset at fair value through R AP Bt ABZE
profit or loss LEREE = 135 = 135

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2021: Nil).

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

FR-F-ERF_EZAVELFEFE

CEE O NEEREIREREAFE B (=T
Z—F ) o

RZBE-_—FR-_F-_—F+_A=+—8 -
AEFBTETMZATEFEZEHEE-

Tﬂi&ﬁ/i.ﬁ@/—\ A
—FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR SRR M R

31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 35. B EREEBFERBER
AND POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: AEBERAELETKRR : SNERB
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of FEERREEBESRR EFERTKE
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these EEBREZEZRAR 2 BEANBEHERE
risks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial MBRRA2BETNRERERE - Zft
performance and they are summarised below. UM
Foreign currency risk SMEE | i
The Company’s functional currency is the US$ and the functional KRR EBRET  MASHHBR
currencies of majority of the subsidiaries are the US$, HK$ and RN EE RET BLRARKE - K&
RMB. The Group's transactions, trade receivables and trade Boi5  BEESERARENEZERERE
payables are mainly denominated in these currencies. ZLA Lt EEHIE -
As the exchange rate of the US$ and HK$ is pegged, management ARETEBTIERRN  WEEERAR
considers the foreign exchange risk in this respect is not significant. 1Lt 75 T 2 NG [ e 30 S B2 K o
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities REBTEBBAAZETRBTAIINGE,E (5
held in currencies other than the US$ and HKS in particular RMB MEARB)BECEKEERBE  BR
to ensure that net exposure is kept at an acceptable level, and will BEZFRBHEFNAEZKE UEBE
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should ZREZEEHAHEAININERR - TRIIREZE
the need arise. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at MEBMREMBEMAUSARBIFTIE
the end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change BRAT BEEEERBEAFEZHEHAN
in RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of SEBRBAANEARKEXRSIER g2 #
the Group’s profit before tax due to changes in the fair value of ) 2 BURE o

monetary assets and liabilities.

2022 2021

— g2 —_F-—
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) (decrease)
foreign in profit in profit
currency rate before tax before tax

S B BE R BB A 2 B B A0 7
ERATE) & /082) #Ei/ Ofd)

% Us$’000 US$'000
FEx FET
I . I I
If US$ weakens against RMB METHARERE 5 35 25
If USS strengthens against RMB 7T 7 A REFHE (5) (35) (25)
The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, whose REERBINEBHEETIRE  MEEE
net assets are exposed to foreign currency translation risk. EFERAENERERR - A - ARG
However, as the net foreign exchange exposure of the foreign INETE ZFIMNERBR AW NEKX - MAE
operations is not significant, the Group does not actively hedge & B A7 37 /75 15 5 0 bt NG LR o

this foreign exchange exposure.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily trade receivables). The Group
trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is
the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank deposits
with initial term of over three months and cash and cash
equivalents is limited because the counterparties are banks
and financial institutions with high credit-rating assigned
by international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December 2022. The amounts presented
are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

35.

e SRR MR
31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

BERBEEEEREE®

EERER
EERBREXSHFEEBTERIAR
BEFAHNEBETEEMIBERIBRNER -
AEEmMEKREELE RS (T2 REWE
SEF) 2 EERR AEBER@RLRR
NREBRHZE=ZTTRG - REBBRRRE
ERNEEMRSZEFPABBERE
B2 o WO AEERBEEREBWIRSES
o MAREAR ZRREBRIETEAX

AEBEFMEHNEHREBE=EAZRT
FERARBRERREEFERBEELEZEE
RBRER RERXZHFRBEREEFR
BETIERSEEFTRZRVITRUBHEE
AEERREERRAK -

TRBINERAEHEEERR (ANHEEE
REREH  BIFEMERBRNEIBE
MKAEB ARG EEEERER
BRRER  UERR-ZB-_F+-RA=+—
HOFEREROE - 2WERVAETRE
ERREAE -

! ! ! ! | 1 | |
12-month expected credit

Lifetime expected credit losses

losses (Stage 1) (Simplified approach) Total
tZAARAREER PERARERR
(E-FKR) (L) it
2022 2001 2022 2021 2022 2021
- St “B-F ZECCE “EC-F ZECCE R -
Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
Tin TET TEn TET TEn TET
| | | | ] |
Trade receivables EWE 5% - - 3,870 9181 3,870 9181
Financial assets included n prepayments, sf AERFUE - BE R
deposits and other receivables At RIGUE EREE 2245 2884 - = 2245 2884
Bank deposits with inital termofover AR E =R 2 B11HR
three months 3,724 - - - 3,724 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReSEER 14,482 16,104 - = 14,482 16,104
20,451 18983 3,870 9181 24,321 2869

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group'’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BERAEERBKVEZRFIAAZEER
B2 — P E(CERRMBERRM G 204K E -

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE IS E R MY
31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of banking facilities.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

35.

B¥RMEEBERBEER®)

REBE SRR
AEEZBRRERDFARTER  HE
ERFEREEETRIE HERTE -

AREBRBEEMRRIBEC AT ERRA R
ozeBMBEIHBERNT

Within 1 year 1to 5 years Total

-FR -Z1f it
2022 201 2022 2021 2022 2021
—§-CE —E--F —E-CE —E--F —ECCE —E--F
US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000 US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000
W OTER AR TEL TR TER

| | | | ] |

Trade payables ERE A& 885 4253 - - 885 425
Loan fiom a shareholder RE—LRRER 3,856 3856 - - 3,856 3856
Accruals, provisions and other payables  [EFTE R « BERAHEFFE 6,458 7510 - 149 6,458 7659
Bank borrowings RiTER 08 119 - - 08 1,190
Lease liabilities HEaR 737 989 730 398 1,467 1387
12,364 17798 730 547 13,094 18345

At 31 December 2022, bank facilities of US$5,141,000 (2021:
US$5,141,000) have been granted to the subsidiaries which are
subject to guarantee given to the bank by the Company, of which
no facility was utilised at year end (2021: Nil).

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders'value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholders’

equity.

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022

RZEZZF+-A=+—H BFTWEA
RIZRITEEA5141,000K T (Z T - —4F:
5141,00037T) (R RQ G AR S M IRITIR (&
R) - BERERTECHREE(-T-—F:
&) o

AREE

AREAREE TEABARRALRE
EAFELERERRRBERNLE - UXH
HEBRERRBRAEE-

$E@l$%ﬁﬁﬂ TR R AEEAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE IR MR

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. A B Z I AR R &
COMPANY
1 [ I I
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
US$'000 US$'000
FEx FTET
1 [ e I
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBRARIZIRE 5,861 1,001
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BNHIA - e REMERIR
receivables 31 15
Due from a subsidiary & W — R Ff B A B IR 8,764 9,797
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReSEER 37 47
Total current assets MEEEMAE 8,832 9,859
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Accruals fExtE A 146 73
Loan from a shareholder KE—EBREER 3,856 3,856
Total current liabilities RBEERE 4,002 3,929
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZFE 4,830 5930
NET ASSETS BEERE 10,691 6,931
EQUITY s
Share capital e 20,128 20,128
Reserves (Note) & (5E) (9,437) (13,197)
TOTAL EQUITY R 10,691 6,931
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis % & & LONG, Liping %€ F %
Director % Director &%

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. RQ T Z B AR R &k ()

COMPANY (continued)
Note: MisE
A summary of Company's reserves is as follows: ARBZREBEREZQOT -
] | | | |
Capital
Share  redemption  Contributed Capital Accumulated
premium reserve surplus* reserve losses Total
EAHE
REE W BHBK ELRB RiEE #5t
US$'000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
FER SE¥ SEY TEn TR SE

] | | | |
At 1 January 2021 RZZ-Z—-4—-H—H 153409 48 9,883 1695 (178,258) (13223)
Total comprehensive income FEZAMALE

for the year - - - - 26 26
At 31 December 2021 and RZB--#+=A=+-H

1 January 2022 R=2=-=%-A-H 153,409 48 9,883 1,695 (178,232) (13,197)
Total comprehensive income FE2ENAGE

for the year - - - - 3,760 3,760
At 31 December 2022 RZBZZH+ZA=+-H 153,409 48 9,883 1,695 (174,472) (9,437)
! The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the # AKARZ EHBHIERIEEAMKENEAQR

fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus account of the Company is distributable to equity
holders. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or would
after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due
or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

Daohe Global Group Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE M ERERMIEE
31 December2022 —E-—F+-A=+—H

37. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. T EKM{B AR E R

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2022 RZE-_—_F+-_A=+—H TENEAQ
are as follows: AIZFFIBAT ¢
] | | | ] |
Nominal value Percentage of equity
of issued and attributable to
Place of incorporation/ fully paid the Company
registration ordinaryshare/  AATFEEREF AL Principal
Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect activities
ERTRAR
S, EER
A8 B ES Sk EXEE E# M TEEK

Blue Ocean International Group Limited:*  British Virgin Islands USST - 100 Investment holding
EEEREEBRAR: AEABRES 17T REZK
Daohe Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Management services
BNERFARAA BB 18T ERRY
Foshan Chaogi Culture Co, Ltd.*** People’s Republic of China  RMB500,000 - 100 Trading of merchandise
Bl E UL ER AR REARLNE AR 5000007 AmE 5
Foshan Lemeng Trading Co, Ltd.** People’s Republic of China ~ RMB500,000 - 100 Trading of merchandise
BT EHEHERAR PEARKANE AR 5000007 BmE %
Glory Sino Limited? British Virgin Islands USST 100 - Investment holding
AEABRES 17T REZK
Leyi Science and Technology Co. Ltd***  People’s Republic of China  RMB10,000,000 - 100 Software and information
RIMEEREARAF REAR{AE AE#100000007C technology services and
development
BHANESRIMRY
BpR %
Linmark Agency (BVI) Limited? British Virgin Islands US$50,000 - 100 Investment holding
REARREE 50,000 % 7T REER
Linmark Agency (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Procurement agent
BE 1000077 REAE
Linmark Development (BVI) Limited? British Virgin Islands Us§1 - 100 Procurement agent
RBABRES E REBRRE
* For identification purpose only * (BHEE

ERIRKEBBRAR
B FFR
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ARE IS E R MY
31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

37. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

37. TEf B AR ER @)

Place of incorporation/

registration
Name and business

ML/
£ IMRERHS

Nominal value Percentage of equity

of issued and attributable to

fully paid the Company
ordinaryshare/  AATEEREF DL Principal
registered capital Direct Indirect activities
BRITRHRE

AR 2R

e N HE M FTEEK

Linmark Holdings Limited? British Virgin Islands
RBABRES

Linmark (HK) Limited Hong Kong

HE (FE) R A BB

Linmark International (Bangladesh) Ltd*  Bangladesh
EA)IEN

Linmark International (Hong Kong) Hong Kong

Limited B
WEERE (&) BRAA

Linmark Merchandise Consultancy
(Shenzhen) Limited*"3

HEBMESXA (R BERRR

People’s Republic of China
mEARLNE

Linmark Westman Investments Limited®  British Virgin Islands

RERRREE
Loovee eCommerce Company Limited Hong Kong
SETFEBAERAF &R

Loovee Holdings Inc? Cayman Islands

FMEHS

¥ For identification purpose only

Daohe Global Group Limited
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Us$1 100 - Investment holdings
E K&K
HKS2 - 100 Investment holding,
VAT procurement agent and
trading of merchandise
REER RBEARE
kERES
Taka4,120,000 = 100 Procurement agent
4,1200003 REAE
HK$200,000 - 100 Investment holding and
200,000 7T procurement agent
REZRRREAR
RMB1,500,000 - 100 Provision of marketing
AE#1,5000007T consultancy and
product development
services, and trading of
merchandise
RETISHERAR
EmRERBRE
mE 5
USST1 - 100 Investment holding
1NET REER
US$100 - 100 Trading of merchandise
1003 7T BmE %
US$160 - 100 Investment holding
160 7T REER

* EHRES
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RE M ERERMIEE
31 December2022 —E-—F+-A=+—H

37. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL 37. T EMB AR ER @

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
! | | J | |

Nominal value Percentage of equity
of issued and attributable to
Place of incorporation/ fully paid the Company

registration ordinaryshare/  AAFEEREF DL Principal

Name and business registered capital Direct Indirect activities
ERTRAR
EMRL/ LAR R

&2 BN ES Sk BXEE HE B FEEH

Loovee (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited Hong Kong HKS1 - 100 Investment holding
ERERERERAA BB 18T REZK
Loovee Science and Technology People’s Republic of China ~ RMB12,500,000 - 100 Investment holding and
Development Co. Ltd **3 hEE AR A AR 12,500,0007C development and
RITMEEREREERAR operation of online
social platforms
REZKRNFAE LS
WEHRTFA
Loovee Science and Technology People’s Republic of China ~ US$1,000,000 - 100 Investment holding and
(Shenzhen) Co, Limited*"3 i A REM 1,000000% 7T trading
("Shenzhen Loovee’) REZEREES
SERE (RINBRAR
(T8mERIN)
Market Asia Limited Hong Kong HK$4,426,260 - 100 Trading of merchandise
MEBRAT BE 44262607 TT HmE 5
Power Path Limited? Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Provision of secretarial and
BEERAR? 0 18T nominees services to
the fellow subsidiaries
RRAZMER AR
WERREARS
Shenzhen Huike Zhilian Technology Co,  People’s Republic of China  RMB100,000 - 100 Internet information
Ltd. %4 EYNEFl AR 1000007T service

AYMEREHEMBRAT)

* For identification purpose only

* EHREE

BBBERRE

BMRHMEBRFRAF

B FFR
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31 December2022 —E -+ =-A=+—H

37. INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

37. TEf B AR ER @)

Place of incorporation/

registration
Name and business

ML/
£ IMRERHS

Nominal value Percentage of equity

of issued and attributable to

fully paid the Company
ordinaryshare/  AATEEREF DL Principal
registered capital Direct Indirect activities
BRITRHRE

AR 2R

e N HE M FTEEK

Shenzhen Leyi Cultural Communication
Co.Ltd**
RYTEE L BREBR AR

People’s Republic of China
mEARLNE

Shenzhen Loovee Internet Information
Services Co. Ltd**
R B S B AR

People’s Republic of China
mEARLNE

BRAR
Tamarind International Holdings Limited®  British Virgin Islands
REERAREE
Tamarind International Limited Hong Kong
BE

Tamarind Trading (Shanghai) Limited*":?
XEHB S (LB)ARAF:

People’s Republic of China
mEARLNE

Trend Xpress, Inc? British Virgin Islands

RERBRES
Trend Xpress Limited Hong Kong
HHRAERAT e

* For identification purpose only
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RMBS5,000,000 - 100 Sales of toys and accessories
AR 50000007C products
HEMARBEER
RMB2,000,000 - 100 Internet information services
AR 2,000,0007T BRBEERE
USS1T - 100 Investment holding
1€7T REZK
HK$1 - 100 Investment holding and
187 trading of merchandise
REZBREAMES
RMB5,500,000 - 100 Procurement agent and
AR #5,5000007T trading of merchandise
RERERAMES
USST - 100 Investment holding and
(E provision of market trend
consultancy services
REZRRRETIS
BB R AR
HKS2 - 100 Provision of market trend
VAT consultancy services
RATIS R B WS
MR

* EREE
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38.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INFORMATION ABOUT PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Notes:

The companies were registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under the laws of the PRC.

2 Loovee Development is a limited liability company established under
the laws of the PRC and under the legal ownership of two independent
third parties nominated by the Company (the “VIE Equity Owners”).
Shenzhen Loovee, an indirect subsidiary of the Company, Loovee
Development and the VIE Equity Owners entered into certain structured
contracts namely, the Exclusive Technology Consulting and Services
Agreement, the Business Operation Agreement, the Exclusive Call
Option Agreement, the Equity Interest Pledge Agreements, the
Power of Attorney, the Commitment Letters and the Spousal Consent
Letters (together, as “VIE Contracts”). The VIE Contracts provide the
Group through Shenzhen Loovee with effective control over Loovee
Development.

8 RSM Hong Kong was not the statutory auditor of the companies.

The companies were incorporated with limited liability under the laws
of the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 30 March 2023.

ire MRS R

31 December2022 —E - —F+=-A=+—8H
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A FMBHME

RESULTS E 3
I | |
Year ended 31 December
HEt-A=1-ALEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—T-N\% ZE2-NF i 33 —Z_-f% b St 2
US§'000 US$'000 US$000 US§'000 US$'000
A Txr TEn A TR
I I I D R I
Revenue Wiz 107513 65,092 42654 62,639 51,878
Cost of sales HERK (79799) (51,156) (29921) 1727 (34,776)
Gross profit EH 27,714 14,536 12,733 20912 17,102
Otherincome L4 1/ON 816 1317 2292 504 1,190
Selling and marketing expenses HERTMAERRX (12,196) (4,560) (2410) (3133) (2,619)
General and administrative expenses  — R RITBAX (20,791) (19,041) (13.956) (14.259) (14,248)
Finance costs H%ER - (119) 91) (107) (104)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FWE DAz e 7 = = - -
Gain/(loss) on dissolution FEHBLR
of subsidiaries i/ (B8 8 (55) = 277 -
Impairment of goodwil BERNE (66:496) - = = -
Impairment of other intangibleassets ~ Eft EFEER(E (21,747) (11,925) = = -
Impairment of property, n% - BERXERNE
plant and equipment - - (543) - (20)
Impairment of right-of-use assets RAEEERE = (52) (1,006) = (499)
Reversal of alowance/@alowance) for ~ EWNE BB ERE/
trade receivable (&) (54) (304 (579) (220) 219
Operating profit/(loss) BEEF /(B8 (92,739) (20203) (3,560) 4064 1,021
Bankinterest income FATMBHA 30 25 68 161 240
Share of loss of a joint venture ElE—RaERAER ) 1) = = -
Profit/loss) before tax BBanER /(B8 92710) (20179 (3492) 4205 1,261
Income tax (expense)/credit FriE® (%), 8% 8536 4690 15 (139) (240)
Profit/(loss) for the year EREH/(B#B) (84174) (15489) (3477) 4086 1,021
Profit/(loss) for the year THATEEEE
attributable to: &/ (B8):
Owners of the Company RRAHEEA (84,160) (15477) (3477) 4086 1,021
Non-controlling interests FERiER (14 (12 = - -
Dividends K& - - - - -
Eamings/(loss) per share (UScents)  SFERE&FI/(B18) (E4l)
Basic A% (559) (103) (023) 027 0.07
Diluted g3 (559) (103) 023) 027 0.07

1 52 Daohe Global Group Limited
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFMBHHRE

BEERAE

At 31 December

R+=B=+—8H
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-N\F ZE-NF —E-TF —T-_—F ZTEZC
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
FE FET F=ET F=ET FEx
I I I Y I B I
Non-current assets EMENEE 19,823 2,018 2,037 1,758 1,458
Current assets mEEE 30,644 24427 21,074 29,090 24,815
Total assets BERE 50,467 26,445 23,111 30,848 26,273
Current liabilities mEBE (19414) (16,042) (14,624) (19,091) (14,136)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (6,451) (625) (1,567) (798) (877)
Total liabilities BEREE (25,865) (16,667) (16,191) (19,889) (15,013)
Net assets EBEFE 24,602 9,778 6,920 10,959 11,260

EMRREBEBR AR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
~EEF

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman)

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chief Executive Officer and President)

LONG Liping

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
WANG Arthur Minshiang

LAU Shu Yan

ZHANG Huijun

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chairman of the Committee)

LONG Liping

AUDIT COMMITTEE
LAU Shu Yan (Chairman of the Committee)

WANG Arthur Minshiang
ZHANG Huijun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
WANG Arthur Minshiang (Chairman of the Committee)

ZHOU Xijian
ZHANG Huijun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
ZHOU Xijian (Chairman of the Committee)

WANG Arthur Minshiang
ZHANG Huijun

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

WONG Hing Lin, Dennis (Chairman of the Committee)

LAU Shu Yan

CHEUNG Tsun Ching

LU Yuhua

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHENG Sau Man
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE

OF BUSINESS
6/F., YHC Tower

1 Sheung Yuet Road
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Tricor Standard Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

AUDITOR
RSM Hong Kong

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
29" Floor, Lee Garden Two, 28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Citibank, N.A.
China Merchants Bank Co. Ltd.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
A

A ER

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

RAMEBERTELEXMR

BEENEE
BIRE R
BUEBIBR L6 iE

RHBFETERE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

BROBFECEERDE

BEZESRAT
BEBEZEB 165K
RESHPLI7E

=B ED
REXETEELM

A RA S E A EE
B SR
B8 28 SR AR —Hi 2048

FEERRT
BITIRTT (FB) BR AR
TEHEIRTT
BARITROAR AT

ERIRKEBBRAR
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
KREREF

Listing Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 10 May 2002

Stock Code : 915

Board Lot : 1,000

Par Value One and one third US cents

Trading Currency = HK$

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Financial period ended
Results announced

31 December 2022
30 March 2023

Interim results to be announced end of August 2023*

* subject to change

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.

SHAREHOLDER SERVICES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please contact the
Company’'s Hong Kong branch share registrar:

Tricor Standard Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
Telephone:  (852) 2980 1768
Facsimile: (852) 2528 3158

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Hong Kong branch
share registrar promptly of any change of addresses.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

Daohe Global Group Limited

6/F., YHC Tower

1 Sheung Yuet Road

Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2993 5328

Email: ir@daoheglobal.com.hk

Website: www.daoheglobal.com.hk

Daohe Global Group Limited
Annual Report 2022
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DAOHE GLOBAL GROUP LIMITED
BARREEERAF

6/F., YHC Tower, 1 Sheung Yuet Road,
Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
BANEEEHE 15REEEER L 662
Tel F5E - (852) 2993 5328

Website #8uh © www.daoheglobal.com.hk
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